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HIGHLIGHTS 2016-17

(T in Lakhs)
\Total Revenue 2,84,409

PBDIT 59,074
PBT 37,690
. PAT 28,697
\Cash Profit 43,636
\Assets 2,51,767
\Net Worth 1,28,596

EPS-X 38.17




-I-he vibrant team of KPR Brothers, from an agriculture

family of a remote village, evolved their tiny business into
marvel entity through their strenuous and enduring team
efforts transforming the lives of rural folks.Begun in 1971,
with 4 Power looms and 4 employees at their father's barn
with a slender capital is now one of the leading textile
conglomerates in India, built on fabulous values. KPR's
strong fundamentals entailed establishment of 12 state of
the art manufacturing facilities employing around 19,000
dedicated employees. Its quest for quality, excellence,
transparency and good governance elevated KPR as one of
the Top 500 Companies in India and ranked its
management as one of the top 100 CEQO's of India for
consecutive years. Its indulgence in green energy
initiatives, eco-friendly activities, human values up
gradation in pursuit of social cause are noteworthy.

KPR Mill Ltd, is one of the largest vertically integrated
Apparel manufacturing Companies in India, with a
cumulative capacity of 3,53,616 spindles to produce
90,000 MT of yarn per annum; Knitting facility to produce
27,000 MT of fabrics per annum; Garmenting facility to
produce 95 million pieces of ready-made knitted apparel
per annum, one of the largest Garment Producers in India;
Industry acclaimed ETP embedded Fabric Processing unit
with a capacity of 18,000 M.T per annum equipped with
advanced cold processing technology and Sophisticated
Printing Division 7500 M.T Per annum; 66 Wind mills with
total power generation capacity of 61.92 MW. KPR also
has a Co-gen Cum Sugar Plant with a capacity of 30 MW
and 5,000 TCD in its wholly owned Subsidiary Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the 14" Annual Report of K.PR. Mill Limited.

The Financial Year 2016 -17 has been yet another growth oriented and
successful Year for KPR, | wish to share with you some of its highlights:

 Enhanced Garment Production 62.19 Mn Garments |

We grew profits faster than revenue. Effectively managing our business
with strong operational execution, delivered profitable growth to our
shareholders. The disciplined financial approach resulted in consistent
profits,Cash Flows and enjoys a well-capitalized Balance Sheet.

Expansion
As regards the expansion in value added segment,| am glad to inform you

that
* 36 Mn New garment capacity ramp up is progressing as per plan.
* Eco-friendly Processing 'Unit 2'commenced its operations.
» Sophisticated high resolution printing division started
Commercial operations.

Driving shareholders value

We remain highly focused on superior shareholder value, During fiscal
2017,in order to improve the liquidity of the shares of the Company’s in
the stock market and to encourage the participation of small investors by
making the shares affordable, the Equity Shares of the Company of T 10/-
each was split into Two Equity Shares of T 5/- each. In addition, with a
view to return our free cash flow to the shareholders, we resorted to
buyback of shares by giving an option to all the Equity Shareholders to
participate in the same.

Cotton & Power

India is the largest producer, 2 largest exporter and also a leading
consumer of cotton in the World. Remunerative prices in previous year
have encouraged farmers to grow more cotton. Given the forecast of a
normal monsoon, India’s cotton output in 2017-18 may also rise. The
balanced supply and demand situation will lead to stable cotton prices,
which may help Indian textile firms in keeping their input costs lower. The
rollout of Goods and Services Tax (GST) may also help lower the cost.
These factors will improve the earnings outlook for textiles. With the
support of captive power, KPR has an edge over others in respect of power
CosL




Value addition to Human Resource

We always consider that people are the most important asset of an organization.
Majority work force of KPR consists of women employees. The value of human assets
can be increased substantially by investing in their welfare activities, so as to create
efficient, healthy, loyal and satisfied labour force for the organization.The purpose of
providing such facilities is to make their work life better and also to raise their
standard of living. Employee welfare is an essential part of social welfare.Education
is one of the most important, means of empowering women with the knowledge,
skills and self-confidence. Acknowledging them as potential human resources,
investment is made in developing their capacity in terms of education, skill
development through training. As in every year with the best coaching facilities
extended through well experienced full - time teachers, this year also our
Employees have completed the higher education with flying colors. An employee of
KPR,who has scored 1,123 out of 1,200 in the Government's plus two examinations,
says' | would like to become an IAS officer after completing my college studies: She is
among the 189 girls from KPR who has successfully passed the exam this year.More
than 25 employees have scored above 1,000 marks. Over 20,000 women workers
have been benefitted so far by the educational facilities. In the Government
sponsored skill development programme, around 2000 employees participated
during the year. As you are aware, the textile industry is labour intensive and our
employee care facilities address our additional work force requirement with ease.

CSR Activities

On CSR front, we continue to contribute predominantly on promotion of Education
which plays a vital role in shaping tomorrow's leaders. Not only can we become a
better nation byacquiring the skills necessary to be productive members of a civilized
society but also meet challenges that can produce changes which are productive for
attaining business innovations, political and economic objectives.

When parents think about their children's future, they see collegiate education as
vital to their children's success and when saying so, they most frequently mean an
education of high standard. It is with the objective of making high quality education
affordable to common public, we are focusing on the same. Towards augmenting
green cover, in an ambitious tree planting program, the Company has planted more
than one lakh saplings in the villages and our Units.

Acclamation

KPR's visionary plans & dynamic management continues to crown
its Management as one of the ‘Top 100 CEQ's of India’ for the year
2016 successively besides sustained ranking in the 'List of Top 500
Companies in India. Overwhelming endorsement and enthused
response from the shareholders elevated KPR's market cap to cross
$ one Billion and | wish to thank the Shareholders for their
unstinted support.

Future ahead

Globally, India has the second-largest integrated textile
manufacturing facility. The textile and clothing sector is strong in
spinning and garmenting segments. In the last fiscal, India's the
ready-made garment clothing exports rose 2.31% $17.35 billion,in
which almost 80% are cotton based.Realising that a push in apparel
exports can be an engine of growth for the other segments, the
Government is keen on incentivizing the Garment sector. However,
the Infrastructure challenges, preferential tariffs that neighboring
countries enjoy with EU markets, need to be addressed for textile
and clothing exports to leap forward. To leverage on the strengths
in the spinning and garment segments strengthening of the
processing and allied segments have become imminent. The
strategic expansion implemented in low capital internship Garment
and Processing segments, self- sufficiency in power, focus on value
added products, comfortable cash flow are some of the major
factors placing KPR in a lucrative position to reap the benefits from
the bright prospects.

| thank the entire Management, for their invaluable team work to
achieve the desired results. | am thankful to the Board of Directors
for their guidance and contribution for the growth of the Company.|
would like to thank our long-term shareholders as well as those
who have joined us recently for their unstinted support and
confidence.

With best wishes
K.P.Ramasamy
Chairman
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Dear Members,

The Board of Directors’ take pleasure in presenting the report on the operations and business of the Company along with Audited

Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2017

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Zin Lakhs)
~ PRTCUARS  STANDALONE  CONSOUDATED
2016-17 2015-16 2016-17  2015-16
Sales and Other Income
Domestic Sales 152162 137522 1,69,259 160,329
Export Sales 64,200 54,397 1,01,395 90,654
Other Income 8,264 7629 13,755 11,458
2,24,626 1,99,548 2,84,409 2,62,441
Profit before Interest & Depredation lﬂﬂ 39,022 59,074 49346
less: Interest 4,503 4,442 6,445 5,763
Depreciation 11,743 12,384 14,939 15,205
Profit Before Tax 31,031 22,196 37690 28378
less:  Taxation
Provision for Cument Tax 7668 6,574 9,119 8,390
Tax relating to earlier years (166) 145 (159) 165
MAT Credit Entidement - - 1,420 1,119
7502 6,719 7540 7436
Deferred Tax expense / (Credit) (313) (137) 1,468 (129)
Profit After Tax 23,842 15,614 28,682 21,071
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 15 23 15 5
Total Comprehensive Income 23,857 15,637 28,697 21,076
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS FUTURE OUTLOOK

It has been a significant and eventful year for KPR. The expansion
programs as contemplated have been successfully completed. Its
strategic direction towards value addition has started yielding
results. The revenue recorded a growth of 13% over previous year
and PAT by 52%. The cotton price continues to be stable. The
wind energy (Green power) supported the operations
considerably. Power availability in the State has been
comfortable. Due to hike in Minimum Wages by the Government,
the labour cost has gone up. The well acclaimed labour practices
enabled smooth flow of labour to the expanded capacities. Our
consistent improvement in profitability has been due to several
factors such as strategic plans, reduced cost, increased
production capacity etc. Despite the slowdown due to
demonetization drive, we have not seen any major impact on our
business.

Rapid urbanization, growing population, rising per-capita
income, enlarging middle class & young population exposed to
changing tastes and fashion have led to huge opportunities for
the textiles sector in the domestic market. Growing
encouragement to downstream sectors of the Textile Industry
from the Government and the efforts for expediting Free Trade
Agreement’s to improve the competitiveness on the global front,
would improve the export eamings of the Industry significantly.
KPR, which is well equipped with strong factors of production,
financial and operational performance is an advantageous
position to reap the benefits of bright outlook for the Sectoras a
whaole.

SUB -DIVISION OF EQUITY SHARE (SPLIT OF SHARE)
During November 2016, after obtaining the consent of the
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Members of the Company by Postal Ballot and complying with the
applicable provisions of the Act & Regulations, the Equity Share of
the Company of the Face Value of ¥ 10/- each has been split inta
two shares of Face Value of ¥ 5/- each. The new subdivided
shares have been credited to the concemed shareholders’ Demat
accounts. The new ISIN of the Company at Depositories is
INE930H01023.

The Board of Directors of the Company announced a Buyback of
14,70,000 fully paid-up equity shares (1.95% of the pre Buyback
equity share capital) of the face value of T 5/- each from all the
existing shareholders on a proportionate basis, through the
"Tender Route” process at a price of T 660 per Equity Share
payable in cash. The total consideration amounted to T 9702
Crores representing 9.95% of the aggregate of the paid-up equity
share capital and free reserves, as per the audited accounts of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2016. After complying
with the applicable laws, the Company bought back 14,70,000
Equity Shares. The funds in respect of accepted Equity Shares
have been paid out. Buyback was completed on February 13,
2017 The Promoters who have participated in the Buyback offer
re-organised their stake to the permitted levels subsequently as
per their undertaking to SEBI. The present Paid up Capital Post
Buyback is ¥ 36.95 Crores.

The Board in its meeting held on 03.05.2017 has recommended a
Dividend of 15% on Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each (% 0.75), subject to
the approval of the Members at the Fourteenth Annual General
Meeting.

During the year under review the Company has ransferred ¥ 73
Lakhs to the Capital Redemption Reserve towards Buyback of
Equity Shares and 2,386 Lakhs to the General Reserve.

Our prompt repayments of loan and interest continued. The funds
are effectively managed to reduce the cost of interest. During the
year, we have availed additional term loans to fund the
expansion Projects. The comfortable cash position is expected to
continue with the prospective outlook.

EXPANSION

The Financial Year 2016-17 has been a record year for KPR in
augmenting its capacities in the value added segment. A brief
about the expansion plans completed during the year is
fumished below:

.  GARMENT

KPR commissioned its large Green field Garment manufacturing
facility with a capacity to produce 36 million Garments per annum
under one roof. Now with a total capacity of 95 Million Garments
we are one of the largest Garment Manufacturers in India. New
Clients and new Markets are added. Order book positions,
response from existing and prospective clients are promising.

Il. DOUBLING OF PROCESSING CAPACITY

We have also commenced operations in the "State of the An’
Processing Unit Il. The advanced technology of cold processing
adopted therein reduces the water consumption by 30% and
eliminates the usage of salt completely. This eco - friendly facility
will economise the cost of production and enhance the Fabric
quality with excellent colour uniformity. This new unit will further
add value to the Garment Division.

lll. NEW SOPHISTICATED PRINTING DIVISION

KPR established a new Printing Division with the Sophisticated
Technology Printing Machines, imported from Austria. This
advanced technology empowers us to print sharp designs with
high level of accuracy. Entire range of fabrics, such as light &
heavy as well as delicate & sensitive fabrics can be printed in the
same machine, without any friction. Its ability to print voluminous
fabrics with high resolution is a salient feature. The sharpness &
accuracy in printing the design and colour are its significant
strengths. This new division shall cater to the Premium Brands’
high-end garment requirements camying higher revenue and
margin.

In respect of statements pursuant to Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Hereinafter referred to as the "Act) in Form
AOC - 1 containing the details of Subsidiaries forms part of this
Annual Report. However as required by the ‘Act’, we give below a
brief report on their performance.
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1. QUANTUM KNITS PVT. LIMITED

The garment business has been consolidated for effective
management.

IL K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

The continuous drought conditions at Kamataka impacted the
production and supply of sugarcane. The sugarcane crushing
commenced in December 2016 during the year, could produce
32,995 metric tons of sugar. Out of 423 Lakh units of power
generated 294 Lakh units were sold and 129 Lakh units captively
consumed. However sugar prices continues to be stable.

111 JAHNVI MOTOR PRIVATE LIMITED

In Financial Year 2016-17 the Company sold 192 cars and with
improved service income marked total revenue of ¥ 115.07
Crores. The National Demonetization drive during the year has
impacted the sale of automabiles for the industry as a whole
considerably. However the Automobile Industry is optimistic of its

growth during the current year.
IV. GALAXY KNITS LIMITED

The Company has not yet commenced its operation.
FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from public
during the year under review.

DIRECTORS

The Company has adequate Independent Directors in compliance
with the Act and Listing Regulations. Familiarization Program on
the Company and its operation was conducted for the
Independent Directors. Requisite declaration from the
Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149 (7) of
the Act confirming that they meet with the criteria of their
Independence laid in Section 149 (6) have been obtained.

Sri.CR Anandakrishnan, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and is eligible for reappointment.

The details of the aforesaid Director, required to be disclosed
under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation, form pant of the
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Directors
recommend his re- appointment. All the Directors of the Company

have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being
appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND MANAGERIAL
REMUNERATION CRITERIA

In pursuance of the Act the Company has Key Managerial
Personnel. Mone of the Managing Directors or Whole Time
Directors receive any remuneration or commission from the
Subsidiary Companies and the remuneration paid to them is
within the purview of the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
Company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites etc., to
its Chairman, Managing Directors and fixed monthly
remuneration to its Executive Directors and Whole Time Director
in line with the approvals accorded by the General Meetings in
pursuance of the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as per the guiding principles laid down
in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. The information as
required by Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In line with the criteria evolved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the performance of all Directors,
Committees, Chaiman etc, have been evaluated pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

As required by the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulation,
the Company has already formed the following Committees,
the details of which are disclosed in the Report on Corporate
Govemance forming part of this Report.

L. Audit Committee

. Stake Holders Relationship Committee

l. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

POLICIES

In pursuance of the Act and the Listing Regulation, the following
policies have been framed and disclosed on the Company's
website ‘www. kprmilllimited.com’.

. Nomination & Remuneration Policy
Il. Related Party Transaction Policy
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. CSRPolicy
. Whistle Blower Policy consisting of Vigil Mechanism
V.  Policy on Determining Material Subsidiaries
VI. Code for Fair Disclosure
VIl. Risk Management Policy
Vill. Dividend Distribution Policy

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 &
Regulation 17(9) of the Listing Regulation, the Company has
framed a Risk Management Policy. In the opinion of the Board
there appears to be no element of risk which may threaten the
existence of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has an established Vigil Mechanism for Directors /
Employees to report concemns about unethical behaviors, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct or ethics
policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of Directors / Employees who avail of the
mechanism. The Company affirms that no personnel have been
denied access to the audit committee. The Company has
formulated a Policy of Vigil Mechanism and has established a
mechanism that any personnel may raise Reportable Matters. All
suspected violations and Reportable Matters can be reported to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee at e-mail id
‘whistleblower@kprmill.com’, The key directions / actions can be
informed to the Chairman / Managing Director of the Company,
The Whistle Blower Policy has been framed and displayed in the
Company's Website.

CSR EXPENDITURE

During the year, in pursuance of the recommendations of the (SR
committee, the Company has contributed ¥ 392 24 Lakhs being
2% of the average three years net profit of the Company towards

implementing the (SR activities. Annual Report on (SR, as
required by the Act is appended.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors met Six times during the financial year on
28.04.2016, 25.072016, 05.10.2016, 24.10.2016, 0712.2016 and

25.01.2017 The Composition of Board, procedure, dates and
other details are included in the Corporate Governance Report
that forms part of this Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated
Financial Statements pursuant to the provisions of the ‘Act’ and
the Listing Regulations entered into with the Stock Exchanges.
They are prepared in accordance with the Ind-AS prescribed by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, in this regard. The
Consolidated Financials also marked a significant increase in its
Revenue as well as Profitability.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has duly complied with the provisions of Section
186 of the Act and as required therein the details of the Borrowals,
Security, Investment etc, are annexed by way of notes to
accounts,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Al Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the
financial year were only between Holding Company and Wholly
owned Subsidiary Companies in the ordinary course of business,
whose accounts are consolidated with Holding Company and
placed before the shareholders at the General Meeting for
approval. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134 (3) (h) read with
Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations there are no transactions
to be reported under Section 188 (1) of the Act.

However, the Transactions as required under “Ind-AS" are
reported in the Notes to Accounts of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as well as Standalone Finandal Statements of your
Company. The Company’s Policy on dealing with related party
transactions is available on the Company’s website,

EMPLOYEE WELFARE

Labour welfare activities in an industrialized society have far
reaching impact not only on the work force but also on the facets
of human resources building a humane society. The underlying
principle in our welfare practices is to empower the workers with
human value addition and make the workers contribute
voluntarily their loyal services in genuine spirit of co-operation to
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promote economic development by increasing production and
productivity. The trend setter facilities are provided to supplement
the eaming of the workers by services such as comfortable & safe
accommodation, hygienic food & working conditions, medical
assistance, education, library, sports, extra-curricular activities,
recreation etc. Higher education facilities provided at KPR is one
of the best matching the high standards of an Academic
Institution. The Employees are also keen in effective uiilization of
the education and skill development facilities. During the
Academic year 2016 also, supported by the best quality
education extended by the Company, several employees excelled
in the Govemment conducted Examinations securing higher
ranks. During the year also we have enrolled around 2000
employees under the Central Govemment skill development
initiatives.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of Employees of the
Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136
of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the
members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information
on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the
members at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in
inspecting the same, such member may write to the Company
Secretary in advance.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 provides for protection
against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and
also for the matters incidental thereto. The Company has
accordingly adopted the policy against Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace, for the purpose of preventing, prohibiting
and redressing sexual harassment of female employees at all the
workplace within the Company which are based on fundamental
principles of justice and fair play.

Further, Anti Sexual Harassment Committee has been constituted
at each unit which shall be responsible for redressal of

complaints related to sexual harassment. The details of all such
Complaints and its proper redressal through prompt comective
steps are informed to the Top Management so as to ensure that
suitable processes and mechanisms are put in place to ensure
that issues of sexual harassment, if any, are effectively addressed.
During the year, no complaints of sexual harassment were
received by the Company from any of its Units.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to energy conservation, technology
absorption, foreign exchange eamings and outgo, as required to
be disclosed under the Act read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are provided in the Annexure to the Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company

hereby state and confirm that;

L. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Ind-
AS have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures.

Il The Directors have selected accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year
under review,

lll. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

V. The Directors have amanged preparation of the accounts for
thefinancial year ended 31.03.2017 on a going concem basis.

V. The Directors had laid down intemnal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such intemal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

VI. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS STATEMENT

Corporate Govemance Report and Management Discussion and
Analysis Statement are attached to this Report. Certificate from
the Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming the compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Govemnance as stipulated under
Schedule V of the Listing Regulation is also attached to this
Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

In pursuance of Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, the Business Responsibility Report, containing the
initiatives taken by the company from environmental, social and

govemnance perspective, forms part of this Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Intemal Control System, commensurate
with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The details
of intemal financial control and their adequacy are included in the

Report of Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part
of this Report.

RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR

Details / Disclosures of Ratio of Remuneration of Director to the
median employee’s remuneration as required by the Act and
Companies Rules are appended.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

No significant and material order was passed by any Regulators
that have any impact on the going concem status and the
operations of the Company.

DETAILS REGARDING ISSUE OF SHARES

During the year under review the Company has not issued any
shares. However the Company has subdivided its Share and
resorted to Buyback.

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Coimbatore,
(ICAI No: 0080725) the Statutory Auditors of the Company retire at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting upon completion of their
term as perthe Act.

4 1) RECTORS’ REPORT

As suggested by the Audit Committee the Board recommends the
appointment of BSR & Co., LLP. Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022), Chennai, as

Statutory Auditors of the company.
AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditor's Repart to the Shareholders does not contain any
qualification.

COST AUDIT

In pursuance of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
the Company has appointed a Cost Auditor for the Company to
audit the cost records for the Financial Year 2017-18.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

As required by the Act a Secretarial Audit Report issued by a
Company Secretary in practice is annexed.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an
extract of annual retum in MGT 9 forms part of this Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and express their
appreciation for the assistances and co-operation received from
the Bankers, Govemment Authorities, Customers, Vendors and
Members during the year under review. Your Directors also wish
to thank the employees at all levels for their co-operation and
dedication.

By order of the Board of Directors
Coimbatore K.P. Ramasamy
03.05.2017 Chairman
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Form ADC - 1

{Pursuant to first provision to sub-section 12 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Financial Summary of Subsidiary Companies

{ in Lakhs)
pE Quantum KNITS | KPR Sugar Mill | Sy Jahnvi Motor
~ PAT. UMITED Limited Limited Private Limited

Share Capital 10 583 5 193
Reserves & Surplus 2,067 21,018 (1) 489
Total Assets 2,086 77430 4 4,749
Total Liabilities 9 55,829 - 4,067
Investments (Excluding investment in - . " "
subsidiaries)

Tumover 408 63,844 - 11,507
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 87 6,588 - 10
Provision for Tax 45 1781 - ()
Profit After Tax 42 4,807 - 17
Proposed Dividend - - - -

% Share Holding 100 100 100 100
Form ADC-2 - All the transactions are at arm’s length basis only.

12 Particulars of Employees- (Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

a) Information as per Rule 5(1) of Chapter Xlll, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014,

1. Remuneration paid to Whole-Time Directors (WTD)

: Ratio of Remuneration on
Name of the Director Title ;m M (Fiscal 2016-17)
year ©MRE | Revenues | NetProfit
Sri. K.P. Ramasamy Chairman 3268° 153.88 0.399 377
Sri. KPD Sigamani Managing Director 32.68* 153.88 0.399 3.77
Sri. P. Nataraj Managing Director 32.68* 153.88 0399 3.77
Sr. CR Anandakrishnan Executive Director Nil 412 0.011 0.10
Sri. EK Sakthivel Executive Director Nil 3.09 0.008 0.08
Sri. P. Selvakumar Whole - Time Director 13.21 1.53 0.004 0.04

*0On account of increase in Net Profits

2. Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fee only and its details are provided in the Corporate
Govemnance Report
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3. Remuneration of other Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

5. PL Murugappan Chief Financial Officer 11.62
Sii. P. Kandaswamy Company Secretary 6.86

4. Percentage increase in the Median Remuneration of employees in the financial year: 10.37%.
5. Number of Permanent Employees on the roll of the Company at the end of the year: 10,995

6. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the Managerial Remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the Managerial Remuneration.

The average annual increase in the salaries of employees during the year was 10.37% while the average increase in managerial
remuneration during the year was 32.68%. The Managerial Remuneration is fixed by the Shareholders on recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board.

7. hishereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

Coimbatore K.P. Ramasamy
03.05.2017 Chairman
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4 ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for Financial Year 2016-17

A brief outline of the Company’s (SR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

(SR is not just about helping others and creating a feel- good atmosphere in an entity. It is also a confirmation from the entity that it
understands its responsibility towards the world in which operates. As Education is considered to be the most powerful instrument
which one can use to change the world, we predominantly concentrate on promotion of education besides other sodial objectives. The
(SR activities under the Policy are those covered under the ambit of Schedule Vil of the Companies Act 2013. Maiden initiatives on
Promotion of education, ensuring environmental sustainability, Medical aid etc, The Policy is available in the website of the Company
at www.kprmilllimited.com. (SR projects are subject to audit.

1. The Composition of the (SR Committee

The composition of the Committee is as follows
a) Sri. KP.Ramasamy - Chairman

b) Sri. KPD Sigamani - Managing Director

¢) Sri.P.Nataraj - Managing Director
d) Dr.5.Ranganayaki - Independent Director

2. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years
¥ 19,607 Lakhs

3. Prescribed (SR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 2 above)
¥392.14 Lakhs

4. Details of (SR spent during the financial year

During the Financial year funds were utilised towards promotion of education, flood relief, eradicating hunger, enhancing
vocational skills etc., directly.

5. Totalamount spent forthe financial year
T 39224 Lakhs

6. Amount unspent, if any
NIL
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7. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below

( In Lakhs)

(1 2) (3) (@) (5) (6) () 8)

Amount spent
Projects or on the projects
L Sectorin | (localareaor| ouiay | Programs | Cumulative | oo ot
S.No| SRPORA | e | other@Spedfy| (udgen | Subheads: | PN | p o gy
or acivity Projectis | theSaeand | pmjector | 1 pireat R | anmesindig
R covered | TEOIAWRNY | ooy | e | PO agency
projects or o : : period !
programs was on projects or

1 | Pomotion of | Education Arasur, 38654 | 38654 386.54 Direct
Education Coimbatore Direct 386.54

District, Expenditure
Tamil Nadu.

2 Ensuring Envionmental | Kalliampudur, 5.70 570 570 Direct
Environmental | Sustainability Erode District, Direct 570
Sustainability Tamil Nadu. Expenses

Thekkalur,
Tirupur District, 15
Tamil Nadu.

Total 39224 | 39224 392.24 39224

8. Details of implementing agency : Nil

9. The Committee hereby state that the implementation and monitoring of (SR Policy, is in compliance with (SR objectives and Policy

of the Company
Coimbatore P. Nataraj KP. Ramasamy
03.05.2017 Managing Director Chairman

(SR Committee
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS)
RULES, 2014

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES TAKEN

To reduce power consumption at Arasur Garment
unit, the reciprocating model compressor has been
replaced by Screw Compressor with variable speed
drive.

Replacement of Tube lights with LED lamps that are
energy efficiency and cany long life time at all our
Units cantinues, to reduce the power consumption.

b) ADDITIONAL INVESTMENTS AND PROPOSALS, IF
ANY, BEING IMPLEMENTED FOR CONSERVATION OF
ENERGY

Further efforts are being taken to reduce power
consumption at all units.

¢) IMPACT OF THE MEASURE (a) & (b) ABOVE FOR
REDUCTION OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND
CONSEQUENT IMPACT ON COST OF PRODUCTION OF
GOOoDS

The energy saving measures result in consumption of
economised power and fuel that would reduce the
cost of production. Total energy consumption &

Consumption per unit of production are as per Form
‘A below:

FORM A — PARTICULARS IN RESPECT OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION

| Power and Fuel Consumption
1. Power & Fuel Consumption
A Electricity
i Connected Load KvA 39915 36915
it Purchase of Units Lakh Units 216 36
i) Total Amount T Lakhs 1,503 2,051
i) Rate Per Unit (Average) z 6.96 6.29
v} Demand Charges 7 Lakhs 1368 1,352
B) Electricity from Third Party
il  Purchase of Units Lakh Units 884 1319
it Total Amount T Lakhs 4,693 8341
i) Rate Per Unit (Average) T 531 6.32
2. Own Generation
i) Through Diesel Generator
Units generated Lakh Units 1 1
Total Amount 7 Lakhs il 28
Cost/Unit 4 16.50 1887
Units/Litre of Diesel Units 324 255
i} Through Wind Mill
Units generated Lakh Units 1,228 733
lily Through Steam Turbine
Units Units NIL NIL
Coal/Fumace il / Others
I Consumption per unit of Production
Particulars Units | 2016-17 | 2015-16
al Production of Yam Kgs 86301692 81036135
Electricity (units) per Kg of yam | Units 248 265
Production
b} Processed Fabric 91,20607 | 86,05377
Electricity (units) per Kg of Fabric | Units 113 119
Processed
¢/ Garment Produced - In House | Kgs 14716770 | 4718357
Electricity consumed/ Garment | Units 0.28 0.28
Production
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

1. Specific areas in which R&D camied out by the Company:

Further Improvement in Quality of Products, Development of new Products and Designs, Cost control measures, Energy
Conservation etc.

2. Benefits derived as a result of above R&D:

Sustained quality of products at economized cost.
3. Future Plan of Action:

Continuous focus on innovations in Textile development processes & products.
4. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

The advanced technology of cold processing adopted at our new state of the art processing unit reduces the water consumption
by 30% and eliminates the usage of Salt completely. This eco - friendly facility will economise the cost of production besides
enhancingthe quality.

All manufacturing facilities are equipped with high-tech quality control equipment and well trained Personnel. ETP at Processing

Division has Zero Discharge System.
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 17
= | _in Lakhs)
1 Foreign Exchange eamed through exports amounted to 64,200 54,397
2 Foreign exchange used 44,636 20,540
By order of the Board of Directors
Coimbatore K.P. Ramasamy

03.05.2017 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
M/'s KPR Mill Limited
Coimbatore.
| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate

practices by M/s K.PR. Mill Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Companies Act 1956 (to the extent applicable)

(i} The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act) viz.:-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
{vi) and other applicable laws to a Textile Industry viz, Textile Control Orders, Textile Committee Produce Cess Act, Textile (Development
and Regulation) Order etc,,
As per the information and explanation provided by the management and officers of the Company and also on verification of reports
and centificates of professionals | report that adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance of Laws relating to Direct
and Indirect Taxes, Labour and other Legislations.
| have also examined compliance with the Listing Agreement and applicable Regulations of the Securities Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc mentioned above,

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and

Independent Directors and Women Director. There were no changes in the compasition of the Board of Directors during the period
under review.

Adequate naotice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the Meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no
dissenting views have been recorded.

As informed the company has responded appropriately to the notices received from various statutory / regulatory authorities wherever
found necessary.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were the following events:

|. During the year under review, the Company has sub divided the Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each into 2 Shares of Rs.5/- each on
15.11.2016. In result of this the number of Equity Shares issued has been increased from 3,76,82,892 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
to 753,65,784 Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each.

Il During the year under review, the Company has made a Buy Back of 14,70,000 Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each on 13.02.2017 In result
of this the number of Equity Shares issued has been reduced from 753,65,784 Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each to 738,95,784 Equity
Shares of Rs.5/- each and the Paid up Share Capital of the Company changed from Rs.3768,28,920/- to Rs.36,94,78,920/-

| further report that during the audit period there were no instance of

a) Public/Rights / Preferential Issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity

b) Redemption

¢) Foreign Technical Collaboration.

d) Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

K. Radhakrishnan B.Com., ACS,
Place: Coimbatore Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 03.05.2017 ACS No: 30614, CP No: 16911
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A ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS" REPORT

‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members,

M/s KPR Mill Limited
Coimbatore.

My repont of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the comectness of the
contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that comect facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Ihave notverified the comectness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4, | have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events
etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with

which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

K. Radhakrishnan B.Com.,, ACS,
Place: Coimbatore Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 03.05.2017 ACS No: 30614, CP No: 16911
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

iy CON : L17111T22003PLC010518

i) Registration Date : 19.03.2003

i) MName of the Company KPR Mill Limited

ivi Category / Sub-Category of the Company :  Public Company Limited by shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details : Registered Office Corporate Office
No.9, Gokul Buildings, 1* Floor,
1% Floor, AKS. Nagar, Srivari Shrimat,
Thadagam Road, 1045, Avinashi Road,

vi) Whether listed company (Yes / No)

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar
and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the Total Tumnover of the Company shall be stated

M.

Coimbatore - 641 001.
Ph: 0422 - 2478090
Fax : 0422 - 2478050

: Yes

Coimbatore - 641018.
Ph - 0422 - 2207777
Fax : 0422 - 2207778

Karvy Computershare Private Limited,

Unit: K.PE_ Mill Limited, Karvy Selenium,

Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032.

Ph: 040 - 6716 2222 Fax : 040 - 2300 1153

Toll Free No : 1800 345 4001,

.. Name and Description of #fmﬁidﬂ_ % to Total Tumnover
' Main products / Services Product / Service of the Company
1 Yam mn 58.27
Fabric 17115 23.00
3 Gament 18101 15.20
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Associate | held
1 | W/s. KPR Sugar Mill Limited, No - 5, AKS Nagar, U15421TZ2006PLC012633 | Subsidiary | 100 2(87)
Thadagam Road, Coimbatore - 641 001
2 | M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited, No - 5, AKS Nagar, | U50100TZ2011PTC017370 | Subsidiary | 100 2(87)
Thadagam Road, Coimbatore - 641 001
3 | Ws. Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED, 5.F. No. 181, U18101TZ2009PTC0O15251 | Subsidiary | 100 2(87)
Kollupalayam Village, Arasur, Coimbatore - 641 107
4 | M/s. Galaxy Knits Limited, 252, Periyar Colony, U18100TZ2012PLCO18577 | Subsidiary | 100 2(87)
Anupparpalayam, Tirupur - 641 652
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IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
(i Category-wise Shareholding

‘No of Shares held at the beginning of the |  No of Shares held at the end of the %
_ . _ year Face Value of T 10/- each year Face Value of ¥ 5/- each Change
Code | Category of Shareholder % of % of w

Year

Demat | Physical| Total | Total | Demat | Physical| Total | Total
Shares Shares

(i
PROMOTER AND PROMOTER
GROUP

INDIAN
Individual / HUF 27208725 - | 27208725 | 7221 | 53309379 -| 53309379 | 7214 | -007
Central Government / State
Bodies Corporate 1038000 -| 1038000 | 275 | 2037162 -| 2037162 | 276 0.01
Finandal Institutions / Banks - - - - = - - - -

s=

EET EEE

Sub - Total A(1) 28246725 - | 28246725 | 7496 | 55346541 - | 55346541| 7490 | -0D.06

{2) | FOREIGN
{a) | Individuals (NRls / Foreign
Individuals) - - - - - - - - -

22 {h] Bodies Ccl'poiate - - - - - - - - -

(@ | Institutions - - - - - - - - -

(d) | Qualified Foreign Investor - - = . . . - - -
(e) | Others - - - - - - - - -

Sub -Total A(2) . . - - - - - - -
Total A = A(1)+A(2) 28246725 - | 28246725 | 7496 | 55346541 - | 55346581| 7490 | -0.06

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
INSTITUTIONS

Mutual Funds / UTI 4450559 - | 4450559 | 1181 | 9431663 - | 9431663 | 1276 095
Financial Institutions / Banks 141596 -] 141596 | 038 101854 - 101854 | 014 | -024

Central Government / State
Governmentl(s) - - - - - - - - -

Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - =
Insurance Companies - - - - - - -
Foreign Institutional Investors 1204728 - | 1204728 320 | 1958300 - | 1958300 285 055
Foreign Venture Capital
Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
Others
Foreign Nationals - - - - 1078 - 1078 - -

ESEE CTEEESS

==

Sub - Total B(1) 5796883 - | 5796883 | 1539 | 11492895 - | 11492895 | 15.55| 0.16
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No of Shares held at the beginning of the |  No of Shares  held at the end of the a9
_year Face Value of ¥ 10/- each year Face Value of ¥ 5/- each Change
Code | Category of Shareholder % of % of | During
Demat | Physical | Total Total | Demat | Physical| Total Total | the
Shares Shares | Year
(2) | NON - INSTITUTIONS
{a) | Bodies Corporate 651964 - 651964 173 553919 - 553919 0.75 0198
b | Individuals
{i) Individuals holding nominal
share capital upto ¥ 2 lakhs 1840730 9463 | 1850193 491 | 4712158 4252 | 4716410 6.38 147
{ii} Individuals holding nominal
share capital in excess of
T 2 lakhs 993407 - 993407 264 | 13175 - | 1374175 186 -078
{¢) | Qualified Foreign Investor . - - . - - - - -
(d | Others
Trusts - - - - 6589 - 6589 | 001 0.01
Overseas Corporate Bodies - - - = - - - - s
Foreign Corporate Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Non - Resident Indians 131367 - 131367 034 205331 - 205331 028 ( -006
Non - Resident Indian Non - 23
Repatriable - - - - 74829 - 74829 0.10 010
Clearing Members 12353 - 12353 0.03 125095 - 125095 0.17 0.14
Sub - Total B(2) 3529!11| 9463| 3639284 9.65| 7052096 4252| 7056348 955| -0.10
Total B=B{(1)+B(2) mmn| 9463| 9436167 25.04| 18544991 4252| 18549243 2510 0.06
Total (A+B) mnml 9463| 37682892 100 | 73891532 4252| 73895784 100| 0.00

(0 | SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIANS,
AGAINST WHICH DEPOSITORY

(1} | Promoter and Promoter Group - - = = - - - - -
(2) | Public . - - - - - - - -

Sub- Total C - - - - - - -
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 3]’6?3#25' 9463 i?ﬁ!!ﬂﬂl 100 | 73891532 4252 ?33957811 100 -
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the beginning of the %
year Face Value of T 10/- each year Face Value of 7 5/- each ﬂ':ll
SEE e e el woor | saemsset H:mu Noof | *of Shares %m m
Shares the | cumbered | gores wumbered | dhang
Company to total Company to total the
shares shares year
1| Sii. KP. Ramasamy 81,27,684 2157 -| 15950000 21.58 -| o015
2 | Sii. KPD Sigamani 81,28,634 2157 -| 15950000 21.58 -| 0015
3 | Si. P. Natargj 81,27733 2157 -| 15950000 2158 -| o015
4 |Ma LR, Developens - -| o015
Limited 10,38,000 275 2037162 276
5 | Smt. N, Jayanthi 9,41,842 250 -| 1819793 246 - -004
6 | Smt. KR Parvathi 941,171 250 = 18,18,380 246 - -0.04
7 | smt. D. Radhamani 9,40,941 250 - 1819793 246 -| 004
8 | Sii. CR. Anandakrishnan 720 - - 1413 - -
Total 28246725 7496 - | 5.53,46,561 7490 -| 006
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
_ Offered shares | oy oy e
Sl st st S | Mo | bl | S
1 | Si.KP Ramasamy 16255368 304,114 1254 1,59,50,000
2 | si. kPD Sigamani 1,62,57268 3,04,149 3,119 1,59,50,000
3 | si. P Natari 1,62,55,466 304,115 1351 1,59,50,000
4 | Ms. KPR Developers Limited 20,76,000 38,838 - 2037162
5 | SmtN.Jayanthi 18,83,684 35,240 28,651 1819793
6 | Smt KR Parvathi 1882342 35216 28,746 18,18,380
7 | smt.D.Radhamani 18,8182 35,207 26,882 1819793
8 | Si.CR Anandakrishnan 1,440 27 . 1413
Total 5,64,93,450 10,56,906 90,003 5,53,46,541
74.96% 74.90%
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(iv) Shareholding Pattem of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors Promoters and Holders of GDRs And ADRs)

Shareholding at the beginning of the| Cumulative Shareholding during the
year Face Value of ¥ 10/- each year Face Value of T5/- each
S No. Top Ten Shareholders '
No. of % of Total Shares of No. of % of Total Shares of
Shares The Company Shares the Company
1 | D5P Blackrock Micro Cap Fund 11,95,439 3.7 24,590,684 337
2 | Land T Mutual Fund Trustee Ltd L and
T Tax Advant 515,672 137 775,715 1.05
3 | DSP Blackrock 3 years close ended
Equity Fund 516,048 137 749,965 1.01
4 | Land T Mutual Fund Trustee Ltd - L
and T India Prudence Fund 1,28,476 034 6,30,068 0.85
5 | Ocean Dial Gateway to India Mauritius
Limited 3,65,000 0.97 6€,00,000 081
6 | Land T Mutual Fund Trustee Ltd - L
and T India Value Fund 198,100 0.53 590,860 0.80
Bida Sun Life Pure Value Fund 1,68,400 0.45 3,73,862 051
8 | DSP Blackrock Small and Mid Cap
Fund 187898 0.50 372,408 0.50
9 | Birda Sun Life Advantage Fund 1,82,800 0.49 3,59,402 0.49
10 | BNP Paribas MID Cap Fund 161113 0.43 3,33827 0.45 25

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning of the| Cumulative Shareholding During the year
year Face Value of T10/- each Face Value of ¥5/- each
SNo. For Each of the Directors 9% of Total
No. of Shares | Shares of the | No. of Shares "“T“tﬁ'”“"““""‘
Company =
1 Sii. K.P. Ramasamy 81,27684 2157 1,59,50,000 2158
2 Sri. KPD Sigamani 81,28,634 2157 1,59,50,000 2158
3 Sri. P. Nataraj 81,27733 21.57 1,59,50,000 2158
4 Sii. CR. Anandakrishnan 720 0.0019 1,413 0.0019
5 Sii. EK. Sakthivel . . - -
6 Sri. KNV. Ramani - - - -
7 Sni. G.P. Muniappan - - - -
8 Dr. K. Sabapathy - - - Z
9 5. AM. Palanisamy - - - -
10 | Sri. C Thirumurthy 5 0.0001 10 0.0001
11 Dr. 5. Ranganayaki - - . -
12 5ni. P. Selvakumar | - - - -
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Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during
_ _ : year Face Value of T 10/- each | the year Face Value of ¥ 5/- each
e P Efch 0.1 R %ofTotal | o of | 5 of Total Shares of the
No. of Shares Shares of the Shares Company
Company
1 Sii. PL Murugappan - Chief NIL NA NIL NA
Financial Officer
2 Sii. P. Kandaswamy - Company NIL NA NIL NA
Secretary
(V) INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment as on 31.03.2017
{Tin Lakhs)
Particular s fiuan Unsecured Deposit Total
Indebtedness at the beginning of the FY
i) Principal Amount 52216 - - 52216
ii) Interest due but not paid . = - .
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1 - - 11
2% Total (i+ii+iii) 52,227 - - 52,227
Change in Indebtedness during the FY
Addition 1,37,429 - - 137429
Reduction 140574 - . 140574
Net Change (3,145) - - (3,145)
Indebtedness at the end of the FY
il Principal Amount 49,082 - - 49,082
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 55 - - 55
Total (i+ii+iii) 49,137 - - 49 137
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4 (ORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the system by which business entities are directed and
controlled. The Corporate Governance structure specifies the distribution of rights and
responsibilities among different participants in an entity such as Board, Management,
Shareholders & other Stakeholders and spells out roles and procedures for making
decisions on corporate affairs. Effective Corporate Govemance is vital to ensuring
organizational structure run efficiently and with the best interest of the various
Stakeholders at heart including Industries, Employees and General Public.

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of high
level of transparency in all facets of procedures and reporting systems. KPR's governance
practices stems from an inherent desire to improve business excellence and to enhance
the stakeholders’ value with strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and
integrity.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of eminent Professionals from different fratemity empowering the
Corporate’s strive for sustained better Corporate Governance practices. It comprises
twelve Directors viz, One Executive Chairman, Five Executive Direciors and Six
Independent Directors (Including one woman Director) having no business relationship
with the Company & constituting 50% of Board's composition in compliance with the
Listing Regulation & Companies Act 2013 (‘Act).

Number of m of Board lh

Name of the Director Category nm HIM“' M_

= Chairman | Member
1. Si. K P. Ramasamy Executive Director 1 - 2
2. Sri. KPD Sigamani Executive Director 1 - -
3. Sii. P. Nataraj Executive Director 1 = -
4. Sri. CR. Anandakrishnan| Executive Director - - :
5. Sii. EX. Sakthivel Executive Director - - z
6. Dr. K Sabapathy Independent Director 1 . L
7 5. G P Muniappan | Independent Director 1 1 .
8. Sri. K N. V. Ramani Independent Director 5 1 4
9. Sii. AM. Palanisamy Independent Director 1 2 -
10. Sd. C. Thirumurthy Independent Director - - :
11. Dr. 5. Ranganayaki Woman Director - - z
12. 5d. P. Selvakumar Executive Director - - .

**  Excluding Directorship in KPR Mill Limited & its Subsidiaries, Private Limited Companies
which are neither a Subsidiary nor a Holding Company of a Public Company,
Companies under Section 8 of the Act, altemate Directorship and Companies
incorporated outside India.

*** Chairmanship / Membership of
Board Committees include Audit
Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee but
exclude Committees of Subsidiary
Company, Private Limited
Companies, Foreign Companies
and Companies under Section 8 of
the Act.

Their Directorships are within the limit
prescribed. The Independent Directors
have the option and freedom to interact
with the Company Management
periodically and they are provided with
the information required to perform
their functions effectively.

The roles and offices of Chairman and
CEO are separated to promote balance
of power.

BOARD PROCEDURE

During the year under review Six Board
Meetings were held. The dates and
notices were fixed / issued well in
advance in compliance with the
Secretarial Standards. Meetings were
held on 28.04.2016, 25.07.2016,
05.10.2016, 24.10.2016, 0712.2016
and 25.01.2017 The Agenda and Notes
on agenda containing all material
information such as raw materials
purchased, yam produced, yam sold,
fabric production, fabric sales, fabric
processing, garment production, export
of garments, power generated, power
consumed, realization, stock details,
working capital fadilities, term loan
availment, forex risk exposures, annual
budget, capital expenditure, sale of
assets, proposal of Investments &
Projects, status of its implementation,
financials of Subsidiary Companies etc,
are circulated to the Directors in
advance for facilitating meaningful and
focused discussions at the Meetings.
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4 (ORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual  Statutory Auditors, the permanent invitees to the

General Mesting s given below: Committee Meetings attended all the aforesaid
Name of the Director Board Meeting | Attended | <; p yandaswamy, Company Secretary
Attended Yes/No functions as the Secretary of the Committee.The
1. Sn. K P. Ramasamy 6 Yes Committee recommends the appointment &
2. Si.KPD Sigamani 5 Yes remuneration of Internal Auditors, Statutory
3. SLP.Neare ¢ o | o A i
5 : q ountan
4 Srf. R Ar'sand.aknshnan 4 Yes exposure conducts Internal Audit.
5. 5. E K Sakthivel 6 Yes The Chairman of the Audit Committee was
6. Dr. K Sabapathy 6 Yes present at the last Annual General Meeting held
7 Sri. KNV. Ramani 6 Yes on 25.08.2016.
8. Sri. G.P. Muniappan 6 Yes The ﬁudﬂ Committee charter has bE'I.!I‘I framed
9. Sri. AM. Palanisamy 5 Yes and displayed in the Company’s Website.
10. Sri. C. Thirumurthy 6 Yes NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
11. Dr. 5. Ranganayaki 6 Yes COMMITTEE
12.5a.F. mar 5 Yes The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
AUDIT COMMITTEE consists of 3 Independent Directors as its
The Audit Committee consists of 3 Directors as given below of which 2 are  Members.
Independent Directors.
30 All the Members of the Audit Committee are finandially literate. A Member is a g iappan - Independ
Chartered Accountant and another is Deputy Governor of RBI (Retd.) b B A s é_ Non - Extnm
Director (Chairman)
1. 5. G. P. Muniappan - Independent & Non - Executive
Drecir Chaimar 251K Sabapathy - Independent
; ) Directar
2. 5r. K Sabapathy - Emdm & Non - Executive 3.0, 5. Ranganayaki - Independent .
& Non - Executive
3.50. P Non - Ind dent & Executive 2o
. 5. P. Nataraj - Non - Indepen
Director The terms of reference specified by the Board

of Directors to the Committee are as per the
The terms of reference to the Audit Committee are as per the provisions of Section provisions of Section 178 of the Act &

177(4) of the Act & Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and in pursuance of ;

Audh Committee Charter: Regu!aﬂ@ 19 of the Lisli_[ng Regulauuns and
: , ) . . Nomination & Remuneration Policy which are

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Four times and the broadly indicated hereunder

attendance of each Member is fumished as below:
The functions of Committee is to formulate

N o the Attendance at the Meeting held on oiteria to determine qualifications, positive
: Member |- 0.04.201¢] 18.072016| 18.10.2016 21.012017| atibutes and independence of Directors, Key
LSiGP Muniappm _ Mﬂﬂﬂgl!l’iﬂi hﬂiﬂﬁl’ld {K-M.F], Senior
Independent & Non - v v v v Management etc, and recommend to the
Executive Director (Chaiman) Board a Policy relating to their appointment
2. Dr. K Sabapathy - and remuneration, so as to ensure that the
'E"d‘“"d““ o ms&;rh" - v v 4 v/ Company's policies in respect of the Directors,
3. 51 P. Nataraj - Non KMP are competitive to recruit and retain the
Independent & Executive v v v v best talent in the Company and to ensure
Director appropriate disclosure of remuneration paid to

v Attended the said persons.
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Details of meeting held and members attendance during the
year under review, are fumnished below:

Antendance at the
Name of the Member Meeting held on
25.03.2017
1. 5. G. P. Muniappan -
Independent & Non - ¥
Executive Director (Chairman)
2. 5i. K. Sabapathy -
Independent & Non -
Executive Director v
3. Dr. 5. Ranganayaki
Independent & Non - v
Executive Director
v Attended

Details of Remuneration and Sitting Fee paid to the

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has a Stakeholder Relationship Committee to
consider and resolve the grievances of Security holders of the

Company.

1. Dr. K. Sabapathy

3. Sri. P. Nataraj

= Independent & Non - Executive

Director (Chairman)

Director

- Non - Independent & Executive

Director

2.51. GP. Muniappan - Independent & Non - Executive

The Committee consists of 3 Directors of which 2 are Independent.
The Committee met four times during the financial year and the
attendance of each Member is furnished as below:

_ Sa— 20.04.2016 | 18.07.2016 |18.10.2016 | 21.01.2017
m,:"" 1.5 K. Sabapathy -
g Independent & Non -
Remuneration mﬁz Executive Director / v v/ v/
Name of the Directors | during the ":‘hn )
year 2016 -17, " or 2. Si. 6. P. Muniappan -
commitiee Independent & Non -
there of Executive Director v 4 v/ v
. 3. 56, P. Natara] -
1. Sii. KP. Ramasamy 89700 Nil Non - independent & 7 7 7 P
3. 5i. P. Nataraj 89700 Nil v'Attended
4. Sri. CR. Anandakrishnan 24.00 Nil
" i Sii. P Kandaswamy, Company Secretary is the Secretary to the
5. Si. EK Sakthivel 18.00 Nil Committee and the Compliance Officer of the Company.
6. Dr. K Sabapathy Nil 280
7 Sni. KNV, Ramani Nil 1.20 Nokine of R ] eories recaived dorls —
8. Sii. G.P. Muniappan Nil 2.80 - 2016-17 Compiaes
9. Sri. AM. Palanisamy Nil 1.00 1. For non-receipt of dividend, annual 34
A : report, shares lodged for transfer, issue of
10. Sri. C. Thirumurthy Nil 1.20 duplicate share certf
11. Dr. 5. Ranganayaki Nil 1.20
12. S, P. Sel : 3.94 Nil 2. Queries / Complaints redressed 34
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Policy hasbeen | > mlw / complaints as on Nil
framed and displayed in the Company's Website. ’

31
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Pursuant to SEBI's Directions, Company has created a
centralized web based complaints redressal system
'SCORES’ and in that system no complaint has been
received during the year.

As per Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the
Company has designated the following exclusive E-mail ID

forthe convenience of Investors: investors@ kpmill.com

Pursuant to SEBI's Directions, Company has created a
centralized web based complaints redressal system
'SCORES" and in that system no complaint has been
received during the year,

As per Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the
Company has designated the following exclusive E-mail ID

for the convenience of Investors: investors@ kpmill.com

In addition they can forward their grievance, if any, to the
following E-mail ID also:

kandaswamy@ kprmill.com

As required by the Listing Regulations, Company's website
www.kprmilllimited.com is updated with the Quarterly
information conveyed to the Stock Exchanges.

All information that required to be disseminated in the
Company's website as per Regulation 46 (2) of the Listing
Regulations are disseminated. The Company's website
contains a separate dedicated section 'Investor wherein
shareholders’ information are available. The Company's

Annual Report is also available in a user-friendly and
downloadable form.

With a view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors
and Designated Employees, the Company has adopted a
Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of
Four Directors of which one is Independent Director.

1. Si. KP.Ramasamy -  Non Independent &
Executive Director
(Chairman)

Non Independent &
Executive Director
Non Independent &
Executive Director
Independent & Non -
Executive Director

2. Sr, KPD Sigamani
3. Sri. P. Nataraj -

4. Dr.S. Ranganayaki -

The main objective of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is
to assist the Board of Directors and the Company in fulfilling its
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) activities. Besides and in line
with the temms of reference made by the Board of Directors while
constituting the Committee, the Committee has the overall
responsibility for identifying the areas of (SR activities; recommending
the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the identified (SR
activities; devising and implementing the CSR policy; coordinating with
the Agency, if any, appointed to implement programs and executing
initiatives as per (SR policy of the Company. The Committee is also
responsible for reporting the progress of various initiatives and in
making appropriate disclosures on a periodical basis. The (SR Policy
has also been framed and its details are uploaded in the Company's
website.

The Corporete Social Responsibility Committee held two Meetings
during the Financial Year and the attendance of each Member is
furnished as below:

held on

28.04.2016 | 24.10.2016

Name of the Member

1. 5ri. KP. Ramasamy
(Non - Independent & v v
Executive Director - Chairman)

2. 5ri. KPD Sigamani
(Non - Independent &
Executive Director)

3. Sii. P. Natarai
(Non - Independent &
Executive Director)

4. Dr. S. Ranganayaki

(Non - Independent & v v
Executive Director)

+ Attended

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In pursuance of the Act & Listing Regulations the Independent Directors
of the Company met on 25.03.2017 to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors & the Board as a whole and the performance of
the Chairman of the Company. It has assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management
and the Board.



Familiarisation Program on the Company and its operations was

conducted apprising the Independent Directors of the following:

1. Roles, Rights and Responsibilities of Independent Directors in the
Company

2. Manufacturing Facilities / Units of the Company

3. Products Manufactured

4. Production Capacity of each segment and expansion under progress
that are approved by Board from time to time

Key Strengths

Evolution

Unigue Employment Model

Power Self-sufficiency through captive green power
CSR Activiti

10. Historical performance & Future Plans

The Corporate profile and corporate film were exhibited to the Directors
under the program. Corporate Profile is available in the Company's
website,

Besides Reports on the following activities appraising the system and
procedures followed by the Company in ensurng compliance /
observance of those activities were also provided:

1. Compliance with applicable Legislations and Regulations

2. Risk Management

3. Ensuring significant development in Human Resources / Industrial
Relations

4. Annual Budgets and Funding Plans consistent with agreed corporate
strategies

5. Internal Finance Control

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

The CEQ and CFO have fumished a cerificate relating to financial
statements and internal controls and systems to the Board of Directors
as required,

GENERAL BODY MEETING

Details of Location, Date of the General Meetings held during the last
three years:

W @ N oW

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ball Room

1 th 2708.2014 Hotel The Residency
Avinashi Road,
Coimbatore - 641 018,

1130 AM.

Ball Room
Hotel The Residency
Avinashi Road,
Coimbatore - 641 D18.

12t 2508.2015 1130 AM

Ball Room
Avinashi Road,
Coimbatore - 641 018

1130 AM.

No Special Resolutions passed in the 13" Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

POSTAL VOTING AND E-VOTING

In pursuance of the Listing agreement, E-Voting
Postal voting facilities and voting at the AGM were
extended to all the Shareholders of the company to
facilitate Voting on the Subjects / Resolutions
contained in the 13" AGM notice. For obtaining the
consent of members for subdivision of Equity Shares
of the Company also E- voting and postal ballot
voting facilities were extended. To conduct the voting
procedure in a fair and transparent manner, a
Scrutinizer was appointed for the above purposes.
Accordingly the Scrutinizer conducted the voting
process and submitted his reports on the wvoting
polled, to the Chairman of the company.

As per the said Report, the results of the voting on
the Subjects / Resolutions, contained in the Agenda
of the meeting were announced. Besides Reports
were forwarded to the Stock Exchanges. They were
also uploaded along with the scrutinizers report, in
our website, Entire Resolutions contained in the said
agenda were passed.

DISCLOSURE

I. None of the transactions with related parties
during the year 2016 - 17 were in conflict with
the interest of the Company and all the
transactions were only with the Wholly Owned
Subsidiary Companies.
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Il. No penalty or lewy has been imposed by the Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on any
matter related to capital markets during last year.

I Sri. KP. Ramasamy, Chairman, Sri. KPD Sigamani, Managing
Director and Sri. P. Natara, Managing Director are related 1o
each other. 5. CR Anandakrishnan, Executive Director is
related to 5. KP. Ramasamy, Chairman and Sh. EK
Sakthivel, Executive Director is related to Sr. KPD Sigamani,
Managing Director.

V. The Independent Directors of the Holding Company were
nominated in the Subsidiary Companies Viz: M/s. KPR Sugar
Mill Limited (Material Subsidiary), M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private
Limited and M/s Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED.

V. Directors Responsibility Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis Report have been fumished
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

VI. The Company has a system to inform the Members of the
Board about the risk Assessment and its minimization
procedure,

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Annual Report containing the financial statements is posted
{ e-mailed to the shareholders of the Company in compliance
with the provisions of the Act. Towards Green Initiative, the
Shareholders are requested to convey / update their e-mail
address as well as register the same with their respective
Depositary Participant.

Official news releases and official media releases are sent to
Stock Exchanges.

Al Quarterly Results are usually published in “Business Line
(English) or “Financial Express” (English) and in “Dinamalar’
(Tamil) or “Dinamani” (Tamil).

B! The Financial Results are also accessible on the Company's
Website - www.kprmilllimited.com

C) Presentations made to institutional investors and financial
analysts on the Company's unaudited quarerly as well as
audited annual financial results are uploaded on the
Company's website.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
Day and Date Monday, 28™ August 2017
Time 1130 AM
Venue Hotel Le Meridien,
No.762,
Avinashi Road,
Coimbatore - 641 062.

DATE OF BOOK CLOSURE

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed from 22.08.2017 to 28.08.2017
(Both days inclusive) for the purpose of Final Dividend and
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

SHARE DETAILS

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the following
Stock Exchanges:

BSELtd.

1* Floor, Rotunda Buildings,
Phiifoze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001,

National Stock Exchange ofIndialtd.  Symbol: KPRMILL

Exchange Plaza, Plot: (/1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051.

The Annual Listing Fee payable to the Stock Exchanges for the
Financial Year 2016-2017 have been paid in full.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

Members have the option to hold their shares in demat form
either through the National Securities Depository Limited or the
Central Depository services Limited. The ISIN Number of the
Company is INE930H01023.

The Annual Custodian Fee for the Financial Year 2016 - 17 to
NSDL and CDSL have been paid in full.

As on 31.03.2017 shares representing 99.99 percentage of the
total paid up capital of the Company are held in dematerialized
form with NSDL and (DSL

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS

Scrip Code: 532889

Karvy Computershare Private Limited,

Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032.
Ph: 040-6716 2222

Fax: 040 - 2300 1153

Toll Free No: 1800 345 4001

E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com
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SHARE TRANSFER 5YSTEM

After confirmation of the sale transaction from the Broker, Shareholder should approach the depository participant with a request, in
the form of Delivery Instruction Slip, to transfer the shares to the account of the broker. The depository participant will execute the
instruction and transfer the share to the account of the Broker.

Similarly, in the case of a purchase, the Broker will arrange to credit the shares in the Demat account of Share Holder within 24 hours
after the payout has been declared by the Exchange. There is no need for a separate communication with the Company or its Share
Transfer Agents.

Please register your mobile number and email id with the DP, to get instant information through SMS from the Depository, whenever
shares are debited from your DP account. Please ensure from your DP that your order is intact. Please collect a copy of transaction /
holding from your DP periodically. Also use the nomination facility available with the Depaository and register the nominee.

In respect of shares transferred in physical form, the investors need to attach a photocopy of the PAN card issued by the Income Tax
Department along with the transfer deed. After the Share transfer committee of the Company, consisting of Chairman and Managing
Directors, approves the transfer, the shares will be ransfemed by the Share Transfer Agent. For matters regarding the physical shares,
the investors may approach the Company’s Share Transfer Agent.

MARKET PRICE DATA

The details of the monthly highest and lowest closing quotations of the Equity Shares of the Company at the BSE Ltd. and National
Stock Exchange of India Ltd,, during the financial year 2016 -17 are given below:

BSE NSE
MONTH High low | Total Traded|  pup Low | Total Traded
) ®) el @ ) oay
April 2016 £85.00 768.70 0.002 888.00 768.05 0.023
May 2016 98700 809.00 0.020 988.90 806.00 0.063
June 2016 1072.50 903.00 0.005 1074.00 891.00 0.041
July 2016 113990 102475 0.029 1149.00 101730 0.024
August 2016 117950 1063.10 0.001 1185.00 1061.70 0.028
September 2016 1274.00 1072.00 0.003 127155 107380 0.028
October 2016 1255.00 1016.50 0.008 1255.00 1011.00 0.081
November 2016 1178.70 566.00* 0.133 1183.50 565.00° 0.063
December 2016 619.00 559.00 0.014 623.00 562.10 0.086
lanuary 2017 606.45 54975 0.025 606.00 530.15 0.096
February 2017 624.00 564.50 0.007 621.15 564.00 0.060
March 2017 668.90 578.50 0.014 675.00 578.25 0.129

*Share Value of ¥ 10 split into ¥ 5 per Share
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KPR Share Price Vs BSE Sensax

800 32000
= 600 | - 24000
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0 0

Apr16 May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Month 17

—=— KPR High ——BSE Sensex High

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS ON 31" MARCH 2017

BSE Sensex

1-500 14503 | 8868 | 2016069 | 273
501 - 1000 942 576 | 692319 | 094
1001 - 2000 441 270 | 660025 | 089
2001 - 3000 127 | 078 | 319218| 043| SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31° March 2017
3001 - 4000 81 | o050 | 291661 039 SNo Name of Director Shareholding
4001 - 5000 43 0.26 195843 027 1 Sri. K.P. Ramasamy 1,59,50,000
5001 - 10000 82 | o050 | 576498 | 078 2 | Sii. KPD Sigamani 1,59,50,000
10001 & Above 134 0.82 |691,44,151 | 93.57 3 [Sn.PNawrmj 1,59,50,000
Total 16353 | 10000 | 73895784 [10000| | 4 |5 CR Anandakrishnan s
5 | Si. EK Sakthivel ;
. 6 | Dr. K Sabapathy .
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31" March 2017 7 |5 KNV Raragi )
Camgoey Number of | % of 8 | Si. GP. Muniappan .
e Shares Held | Holding 9 | Sri. AM. Palanisamy "
Promoters & Promoter Group 553,46,541] 7490 10 | Sni. C Thirumurthy 10
Overseas Corporate Bodies 16,14,480 2.18 11 | Dr. S. Ranganayaki -
Mutual Funds 9431663 1276 12 | Sii. P. Selvakumar -
Banks & Financial Institutions 9,576 0.01
Foreign Institutional Investors 343820 0.47
Foreign Nationals 1,078 0.00
NRIs 280160 028
Bodies Corporate 679,014 092
Public 61,89,452| 838
Total 738,95,784| 100.00




PLANT LOCATION
LOCATION TELEPHONE FACILITIES

Indiampalayam Village,
Sathyamangalam - + 91 4285 251490 | Spinning
638 454,
SFNo.273, ;
Kitampalayam, +91421 232 1000 | PHTE
Karumathampatti, & Mélange

Coimbatore - 641 659.

5F. No.525, Neelambur,

Spinning &
ok —641 062 + 91 422 2625115 .

Knitting

S.F.No.181, Kollupalayam, Spinning,
Arasur, + 91 422 2635500 | Knitting &
Coimbatore - 641 407. Garmenting
252, Periyar Colony, & .

Ti - 641 652 91 421 2259200 | Garmenting
SIPCOT Industrial Area,

Perundurai, + 91 4294 234800 | Processing
Erode - 638 052

270 |, Periyar Colony, . Marketing
Tieupur - 641 652 91421 2259500 | (vorr @ Fabric)

5F. No 7 Avinashi Road,

Thekkalur, +91 89733 33255 | Garmenting
Tirupur - 641 654
No 460, Avinashi Main
Road, Thekkalur, +91 422 263 5550 | Garmenting
Tirupur = 641 654
Tirunelveli, Tenkasi, Theni .
& Coimbatore District Windmils
SIPCOT Industrial Area, Processing
Perundurai, + 91 4294 234800 | Unit Il and
Erode - 638 052 Printing Division
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
The Company Secretary,
K. P. . Mill Limited,
1* Floor, Srivari Shrimat,

1045, Avinashi Road,

Coimbatore - 641 018,

Ph:+91 422 2207777

For your reference the Company's CIN:
L17111TZ2003PLCO10518

CAPITAL INTEGRITY AUDIT

The Ceriificate from a Practicing Company Secretary, confirming
that the total issued capital of the Company is in agreement with
the total number of shares in physical form and the total number
of dematerialized shares held with the Mational Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India)

4 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Limited, is placed before the Board on a quarterly basis. A copy
of the said Cenificate is submitted to the Stock Exchanges
where the securities of the Company are listed.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation,
2015, the Company has prescribed a Code of Conduct for
prevention of insider trading through Purchase / Sale of Share of
the Company by an insider on the basis of unpublished price
sensitive information. The same is followed and the designated
persons are disclosing the related information periodically.

The Company has also formulated a Code for Fair Disclosure of
the Price Sensitive information in pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the same is
disseminated in the website of the Company.

Si. P. Kandaswamy, Company Secretary functions as the
Compliance Officer.

The financials of the Subsidiary Companies viz, M/s. K.PR. Sugar
Mill Limited, M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited, M/'s. Quantum
KNITS PVT. LIMITED & M/s. Galaxy Knits Limited have been duly
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of the Holding
Company. Sallent features of the Board minutes of the unlisted
subsidiary companies have been placed before the Board of the
Holding Company. The Holding Company’s Board is also
periodically informed about all significant transactions and
arrangements entered into by the Subsidiary Companies.

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining the
Material Subsidiary and the details of such policies are
disseminated in the website of the Company,

It has determined that KPR Sugar Mill Limited is a Material
Subsidiary Company as per the Listing Regulations.

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 &
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has
framed a Risk Management Policy. In the opinion of the Board
there appears to be no element of risk which may threaten the
existence of the Company. The Risk Management Policy is
disseminated in the website of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT)

There has been no materially significant Related Party
Transactions with the Company's Promoters, Directors, KMP, and
the Management, their Subsidiaries or relatives which may
have potential conflict with the interests of the company at
large. The necessary disclosures regarding the transactions in
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pursuance of Ind-AS are given in the notes to accounts. The
Company has also formulated a policy on dealing with the
Related Party Transactions and the details of such policies are
disseminated on the website of the Company.

TRANSFERS TO IEPF ACCOUNT OF CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

The Company has transfered the following unpaid dividend
Accounts which remained unpaid for more than seven years
that were due for transfer during the financial year 2016-17 to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central
Govemnment:

Date of Amount of
SNo Dividend R Transh
Final Dividend
1 2008 - 09 20.10.2016 T 54,832
DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
(As per Schedule V F of the Listing Regulations)
No. of | No. of
l.m_._ S m m
Aggregate number of shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the suspense 9 1175°

account lying at the beginning of the year
i.e. as on April 1%, 2016

Number of shareholders who approached
for Issuer / Registrar for transfer of shares

from suspense account during the year
2016 - 17

Number of shareholders to whom shares
were transfemed from suspense account| - =
during the year 2016 - 17

Aggregate number of shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the suspense 9
account lying at the end of the year ie. as
on March 31, 2017

* Equity Share of ¥ 10 per share **Equity share of T 5 per share

2350

As per Listing Agreement, separate Demat Suspense Accounts
have been opened and the unclaimed Shares have been
ransfemred to those Accounts.
The Voting Rights on the outstanding unclaimed shares lying in
suspense account shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of
such shares claims the shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE VOLUNTARY GUIDELINES

Committed to the principles of good Corporate Govemnance, the
Company has, wherever necessary, complied with the Voluntary
Guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on

Corporate Governance and the Non Mandatory requirements of
Regulation 27(1) of the Listing Regulations.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE DISCRETIONARY
REQUIREMENTS

The Report on Compliance of Discretionary Requirements as
provided in the Listing Regulation is furnished below:

1. The Board

The Chairman of the Company is an Executive Chairman
having an office at the premises of the Company.

2. Shareholder Rights

Financial Performance and significant events are disclosed
in the website of the Company from time to time besides
forwarding to stock exchanges and publishing in
newspaper. The Company is in the process of obtaining
Email Id’s of Shareholders and on completion of the process
half - yearly declaration of financial perfformance including
summary of the significant events in last six-months, may be
sentto each household of shareholders.

3. Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report

The Company is already in the regime of unqualified
financial statements only.

4. Separate posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of
Chairman and Managing Director / CEQ.

5. Reporting of Intemal Auditor

The Internal Auditor is reporting directly to the Audit
Committee and Managing Director.
The above Corporate Governance Report has been placed
before the Board of Directors at their Meeting held on
03.05.2017 and the same was approved thereat.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS — DECLARATION

“It is hereby declared that the Board of Directors of the Company
have adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board members and
Senior/Key Management of the Company and the same has
also been posted in the website of the Company and that all the
Board Members and Senior/Key Management Personnel to
whom this Code of Conduct is applicable have affimed the
compliance of Code of Conduct during the year 2016- 17

P.Nataraj
Coimbatore Chief Executive Officer &
03.05.2017 Managing Director



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF K.P.R. Mill Limited

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter reference no.DHS-C/KPR/2016-17 dated
September 30, 2016.

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Coimbatore, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of KPR Mill Limited ("the
Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended
on 31 March 2017, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paras C and D of
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations).

Managements’ Responsibility

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of intemal control and procedures to ensure the compliance
with the conditions of the Corporate Govemance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility

4. Qur responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

5. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

6. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Govemnance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAl), the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this
certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

7 We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

8. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and
the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Govemance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paras C and D of
Schedule V of The Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2017

9. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 0080725)

CR. Rajagopal
Place: Coimbatore Partner
Date: 03 May, 2017 Membership No. 023418
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE

In relation to the Audited Financial accounts of the Company as at
March 31, 2017 we hereby certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements (standalone and
consolidated) for the Quarter and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(il These statements do not contain any materially untrue
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of
the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
Ind-AS, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are to the best of our knowledge and belief no
transactions entered into by the Company during the Period
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's
Code of Conduct.

(c) We accept that it is our responsibility to establish and

40 maintain internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of the intemal control
systems of the Company pertaining to the financial reporting

and we have disclosed to the Auditor and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation or such

internal controls, if any of which we are aware and the steps
we have taken or proposes to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(i) There were no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls, that could adversely affect the
Company's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and there have been no material
weakness in intemal controls over financial reporting
including any comective actions regard deficiencies.

(i) There were no significant changes in intemal control
during the Period covered by this report.

(jii) All significant changes in accounting policies during the
Period, and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements;

(iv) There were no Instances of significant fraud of which we
are aware, that involvement of the management or an
employee who have a significant role in the Company's
internal control system.

PLMurugappan PNataraj

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer &
Managing Director

Coimbatore

03.05.2017



& MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 2016-17
ECONOMY
Global

Better prospects in large emerging markets and an uptick
in global trade have led the IMF to raise its outlook for global
growth. Though the economic growth in the past six years
has been disappointing it believes that the world economy
was tuming around and projected a positive revision to its
global GDP forecast. It is reported that the developing
countries will continue to be the main drivers of global
growth. East and South Asia remain the world's most
dynamic regions, benefiting from robust domestic demand
and supportive macroeconomic policies. As commodity prices
trend higher, commodity-exporting economies are likely to
see some recovery in growth.

India

The Indian Economic Survey expects that the economy
should grow between 6.75 and 750 percent in FY 2017-18.
The improvement in India's economic fundamentals, which
accelerated in the year 2015, is empowered by the combined
impact of strong government reforms, RBI's inflation focus
supported by benign global commodity prices. There prevails
a strong consumer sentiment with a positive outlook hoping
that the reforms by the government will enable the country to
perform better compared to its peers over the medium term.
Govemment Initiatives such as demonetization, growth
oriented budget proposals, digitalization of the economy,
simplification of the tax administration in the country, such as
GST are considered to be the growth stimulators,

TEXTILE INDUSTRY

Global

Emerging economies will fuel most of the growth in the
Apparel market. Brazil, Russia, India & China (BRIO) along with
a few other South - East Asian countries are seen as the
maijor growth drivers. However, recent increase in the value of
the cumency, combined with rapidly rising labour costs, have
put Chinese manufacturers in a much less competitive
position. Competition from low-cost nations like India and
elsewhere is intense, and a large portion of apparel
manufacturing formerly done in China is moving to these
areas at a rapid pace.

India

Textile is one of India’s oldest industries with a formidable
presence in the national economy. With a strong raw
material and manufacturing base, the sector determines the
fortunes of the economy as well as a number of major
industries. About 27 percent of the total foreign exchange
eamings of the country are from exports of textiles and
clothing. Rapid urbanization, rising population & per capita
income, growing middle class and young population
exposed to changing tastes and fashion have led to huge
opportunities for the textiles sector in the domestic market.
Exports growth is likely to be on account of increasing
competitiveness against other exporting countries. India has
maintained its third position in textile exports next to China
and the EU as per a recently published "Word Trade
Statistical Review” by WTO. This is mainly due to the fact that
capacity built over the years has led to low cost of
production per unit in India's textile which in tum has
resulted into a strong competitive advantage to the country's
textile exporters as compared to key global players. With an
enabling environment and adequate policy support from the
Government, the textile sector in India is expected to achieve
the ambitious vision of exports of US $ 300 bn and 20%
share of global trade by 2024-25 as envisaged in the Vision
& Action Plan 2014-25 of the Govemment for the Indian
Textile and Apparel Sector. The development of textile
segment in India is not only socially significant in terms of
creating more  employment  opporiunities, women
empowerment and eradication of poverty destitution, but
also a harbinger of growth in terms of enhancing national
income, export and entrepreneurship, given that same
segment in the textile chain are capital light and have less
gestation period for commissioning the project.

YARN

India has the world's second largest spinning capacity,
commanding a major share (about 73%) of the global Cotton
Yarn market. Indian Spinning Industry is the most modem
and efficient in the world. India produces a comprehensive
range of yams for every conveyable end use. India can meet
every customer requirement whether large or small, regular
or custornized, premium or basic. Constant induction of state-
of-the-art technologies like compact spinning using the most
advanced yam - processing technology and high-precision
process controls tools give Indian mills a competitive

41




41

4 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

advamtage. Today, Indian yam is widely accepted in
International markets as the exporners here regularly meet the
needs of imponers with unmatched efficiency. On the
question of excess spinning capacity in India, if we look at
the cument modem capacity which can cater to the needs of
high segment machines or high quality yams for high speed
weaving / knitting applications, we are still short of capacity.

Knitted Fabrics in the field of Indian Textiles carries very good
potential in domestic and export market. Good level of
absorbency, cheaper price and ready availability enables its
usage by all classes of people. This foundation fabric are
used by people throughout the year under different climate
conditions. Strength in knitting has grown consistently eaming
the global recognition. Knitting companies in India offer
competitive world-class solutions in circular knitting. warp
knitting, flat knitting and jacquard and the range of Indian
knited fabrics is unlimited. Over 5000 knitting units
concentrated in and around Coimbatore, particularly in Tirupur
in Southem India, produce a wide range of knitwear
collections. Consistency in process control, new generation
technology, effective environmental & social compliances and
efficient quality management have led to India acquiring an
intemational reputation for high-end knitted products.

GARMENT

Apparel Markets have shown robust growth in past despite
global uncerntainties and slack demand. A large and growing
consuming class, continuous growth in their spending power,
shift in their buying habits from need based purchase to
aspiration based purchase are the major drivers of apparel
market growth. India has the largest gen Y population in the
world and is expected to become the world's fastest growing
‘e - commerce’ market on the back of booming investment
activity in the sector and the rapid increase in internet users.
As the brands and retailers will grow large within the country,
they will look for manufacturers with economies of scale who
can cater to large orders timely. Strategic tie-ups between
such manufacturers and buyer will happen which will
enhance stability and efficiency in the overall sector
Enormous market and trade growth opportunities within India
and overseas are going to unfold in the next decade. It is
time for Indian companies to have confidence in India's
potential and adopt a bullish approach to create world class
set-ups with economies of scale and invest in productivity

improvement programs to counter a stiff competition from
other competing Countries, Mega FTAs that exdude India
may pose a threat to Indian exporter. However, India is
vigorously pursuing multlateral wade amangements with
major markets that wene pending for a longtime due to
various issues relating to other major Industries, With the
initiatives of both the sides, the same appears to be
progressing now. Though Bangladesh and Vietnam, the
major competing countries, have lower production costs and
duty advantages in export; still, India is at an advantage due
to local availability of the fiber. Going forward, higher
disposable income in developing countries will help in
demand growth.

COTTON

The country has emerged as the largest producer of cotton in
the world in 2015-16 season accounting for 27 % of global
production and china's share has come down to 21 %. Post
demonetization, cotton prices have gone up since its supply
had decreased as farmers were not selling cotton in a big
way. On the other hand, international prices were ruling
lower than domestic cotton prices. This has encouraged the
mills to import early this year. The fortune of the Textile
industry predominantly depends on the availability of quality
cotton and at competitive price. During the current season,
though the entire value chain had to suffer due to the
increase in cotton price by around ¥ 5,000 to ¥ 6,000 per
candy during the peak season that had cascading effect on
the competitiveness of various segments (Yams, Fabrics and
Garments/made-ups) and exports, for the first time it has
helped the cotton farmers to realize better price. This has
also prevented abnormal export of home grown cotton at a
lower price during the season and the resultant raw material
deficit in the off season, forcing the industry to import cotton
at a high price as it happened last year. This was mainly
possible due to the policy changes in the commercial trading
of Cotton Corporation of India, increased cotton production in
all the major cotton producing states, Chinese cotton policy,
etc.

Though the acreage under cotton during the 2016-17 crop
years has been lower by about 10% than that of previous
year, due to better weather conditions across all cotton
growing regions of the country, the productivity is likely to be
higher. As , cotton farmers could fetch much better income
when compared to any other cash crop, the area under
cotton is likely to increase considerably in the forthcoming
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season. As such, sufficient cotton is available in the domestic
and as well in the international market. Establishment of
Transshipment storage facility’ of imported cotton at Tuticorin
port, Tamilnadu would hence forth enable the mills to source
imported cotton on a need basis in a short span of time from
the port on daily basis and also enable the intemational
cotton traders to sell the sumplus cotton to various countries
from Tuticorin. The gap in the international and domestic
cotton price has namowed down. Willful adulteration in cotton
procured from Gujarat and high trash content in Maharashtra
cotton are some of the issues to be addressed. The Cotton
Balance sheet is given below:

{In Lakhs Bales)
Opening Stock 43.00
Production 35100
Imports 1700
TOTAL SUPPLY 411.00
Consumption 313.00
Expons 50.00
Closing Stock 48,00
{Source: Cotton Advisory Board)
PERFORMANCE

We have yet again delivered strong financial and operational
performance. Repeated growth in revenue and profitability;
higher Garment production; ramping up of 36 Mn. new modem
garment capacity as envisaged ; commencement of commercial
operations in the eco-fiendly Processing ‘Unit 2 and the
sophisticated high resolution printing division are some of the
special features of the performance. The strategic business
model of KPR always camies an edge over peers. With the
implementation of G5T, we see further growth for the organized
sector and the outlook for 2017 appears to be dynamic.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance in the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting, compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. We continue to have adequate system of
internal controls to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded
and are productive. Equipped with necessary checks and
balances it is ensured that the transactions are adequately
authorized and reported correctly. The Internal Auditor conducts

regular Audits of various departments and Units to ensure that
necessary controls are in place. The Audit Committee while
reviewing the system and the Intemnal Audit Repor, call for
comments of Auditors on internal control systems and discuss
any related issues with the Auditors and the Management of the
company before submission to the Board. The independent
Directors also satisfy themselves on the integrity of financial
information and ensure that financial controls and systems of risk
management are in place. The system and procedures are
documented by way of manual which was placed before the
Board.

EMPLOYEE WELFARE

Mill worker wins gold medals in UG exams

The ‘Industry best’ employee welfare facilities are continued. This
supportive environment that creates a work life balance
encourages increased level of productivity and performance.
Their repetitive achievement in the Govemment Examinations, by
availing the excellent higher educational facilities offered at KPE,
continues. Two Employees of KPR recently completed BBA and
BCA courses scoring top ranks in Tamil nadu Open University
making their parents and KPR proud. They used to study for two
or three hours every day after work and attending classes for
three hours. This is the second consecutive year that the worker
of KPR has secured a gold medal in BCA Six workers have
secured university ranks this year, including the two gold medals.
So far over 20,000 workers have pursued higher studies,
Including plus two, under graduate, post graduate courses and
teacher training.

Risks and Threats

As regards business risks assessment, the general risks for the
Textile Industry as a whole and the factors of mitigation are as
follows:

1. Fluctuation in the prices of cotton, the major raw material

As India is @ major cotton producer camying surplus stocks over
consumption, the availability of sufficient cotton may not be an
issue. Equivalent quality cotton is also available at Intemnational
market and the difference between its prices at domestic and
International Markets is also namow. During 2017 -18 cotton
season, the area under cotton may increase on the back of a
‘normal’ monsoon — as has been forecast — and better price
realization to farmers. Many farmers are shifting to cotton from
water-intensive crops this year, increasing the commodity’s
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output. According to the International Cotton Advisory
Committee, the Global cotton output is also estimated to be
higher for 2017-18. Hence wild fluctuation in its prices is not

expected.

2.Labour Shortage

Though labour shortage is an issue for the Industry as a whole,
our well acclaimed labour practices mitigate its impact for KPR
and the various initiatives taken by the Government to increase

employment opportunities such as skill development are
expected to overcome this,

3. Forex Fluctuation

As we are fully covering our Forex exposure, this risk does not
impact us.

4. Stiff competition from low cost Countries enjoying duty
concessions

‘In house’ cotton strength, availability of labour with high
efficiency, good quality products, growing support from
govenment policies, better compliance of nomms, Initiative
towards expediting FTA are some of the encouraging factors that
would mitigate the stiff competition from low cost countries.

5. Global Economic Trend

Despite subdued Global Economic Activity, the Textile and
Garment Industry is moving ahead with increased demand at
domestic and export markets. Rapid urbanization, growing

population, rising per capita income, growing middle class and
young population exposed to changing tastes and fashion has
led to huge opportunities for the textiles sector in the domestic
market. On the other hand slowdown in Chinese expons due to
higher cost of production will provide an opportunity to
exporters to fill the void.

Road Ahead

Asia has already emerged as the largest manufacturer - supplier
hub for textile and apparel products to the world. India stands a
chance to gain a prominent market share because of growing
demand from domestic & export markets, recognition of Indian
goods at International market, economized cost of production,
supporting Govemment policies and a strong raw material base,
According to a Boston Consulting Group (BCG) report; India is
poised to be the third largest consumer market in the world in
terms of purchasing power, as it's consumption may triple to
USS$ 4 tiillion by 2025, owing to shift in consurner behavior and
expenditure pattemn. For the Indian Textile Industry, which is
growing faster in the world, these are specifically interesting
times. The factors that influence the Indian Industry growth are
stability of Rupee against the Dollar, firm prices of inputs like
cotton & electricity and the encouraging global economic
outlook. When GST is in place, it will create a level playing
ground for everyone and will be positive. Particulardy , for
companies like KPR that has integrated and state of the an
facilities empowered with strong fundamentals, the outlook

appears to be bright and promising.

By order of the Board of Directors
Coimbatore K.P. Ramasamy
03.05.2017 Chairman
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4 BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company :L17111TZ2003PLC010518

2. Name of the Company : KLP.R. Mill Limited

3. Registered address : No. 9 Gokul Buildings, Ist Floor,
AKS NagarThadagamRoad,
Coimbatore- 641001, Tamilnadu.

4. Website : www.kprmilllimited.com

5. E-mail id : corporate@ kprmill.com

6. Financial Year reported :2016-17

7 Sectorls) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise)

a) Yam (17121), b) Fabric (17115), c) Garment (18101)

8. List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in balance Sheet)

a) Yam, b) Fabric, ¢) Garment

9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company

{a) MNumberof International Locations — NIL
{b) Mumber of National Locations — 12

10. Markets served by the Company —

v 4 v v

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY (¥ In Lakhs)

1
2
3.
4.
5.

Paid up Capital - 3,695/

Total Turnover - 221914/

Total profit after taxes - 23,842/-

Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%) - 1.64 %
List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred:-

(a) Promotion of Education
(b) Ensuring Environmental Sustainability

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1.

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company / Companies?
YES, . It has four Subsidiary Companies
(i) K.P.R. Sugar Mill Limited (ii) Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED (iii) Jahnvi Motor private Limited (iv) Galaxy Knits Limited

Do the Subsidiary Company / Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? Ifyes, then indicate the number
of such subsidiary company(s)

The Company encourages its Subsidiaries to participate in the BR.
Do any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc) that the Company does business with, participate in the BR initiatives
of the Company? [fyes, then indicate the percentage of such entity / entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%] - NO

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR -

(a) Details of the Director/Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy / policies
1.DINNumber  : 07228760
2.Name : 5ri. P. SELVAKUMAR
3. Designation  : Whole Time Director

L
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(b) Details of the BR head

No. Particulars Details
1 DIN Number (if applicable) 07228760
2 Name Sri. PSELVAKUMAR
3 Designation Whole - Time Director
4 Telephone Number 9865254203
5 e-mail id selvakumar@kprmill.com

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies

LIST OF PRINCIPLES
Pl Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life

BBEIRRE =2

cycle
Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

(a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

No Questions PL | P2 | P3| P4 | P5 |PE|PT|PB| PO
1 | Do you have a policy’ policies for.... Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 | Has the policy being formulated in consultation with

the relevant stakeholders? L R O
3 | Does the policy conform to any national / | Policies are prepared ensuring adherence to applicable laws
intemational standands? If yes, specify? (50 words) and intemal standards of the compa

Has the policy being approved by the Board?
Is yes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
appropriate Director

Does the company have a specified committee
of the Board/Director/Official to oversee Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? http://www kprmilllimited.com/investors

Has the policy been formally communicated to all The policy have been communicated to the relevant
relevant intemal and extemnal stakeholders? stakeholders wherever required

Does the company have in-house structure to
implesnient the poliof’ polides. Y1Y[y[y|y|v|vy[yly

Does the Company have a grievance redressal
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address

stakeholders” gievences related o the poii | T | Y | T | Y| Y Y[ Y| Y| Y
policies?

10

Has the company caried out independent audit/
evaluation working of this policy by an internal
or external agency?

Being first year of adoption such evaluation be considered at
appropriate time.
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{b) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options) -
Not Applicable
Govemance related to BR

(a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR performance
of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year - Assessed annually.

{(b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report ? What is the hypedink for viewing this report ? How frequently
itis published ?

The Company publishes it as a part of the Annual Report from the current year.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1

1

Does the policy relating to ethic, bribery and comuption cover only the company?

The Company has a well-defined code of conduct applicable to Directors and Employees.
Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

Yes, applicable to Group Companies/ Subsidiaries.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved
by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

No Stakeholder complaint was received during the year on the conduct of business involving ethics, ransparency and
accountability.

Principle 2
1. List up to 3 of your roducts or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concems, risks and/or

opportunities.

All our Factories are approved by Pollution Control Board which ensures environmental compliances. Our Arasur Garment factory has been
ranked as "Eco-Friendly’ by a reputed Intemnational Brand. Besides, we hold centificates such as WRAP, GOTS, OEKO-TEX, IS0 14001:2007,
150 9001:2008, IS0 18001:2004, SA 8000:2014 etc., relating to the sodial or environmental concems.

For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc) per unit of
productioptional):

{a) Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value chain?

We produce cotton based textile products, which is eco-friendly and does not pollute environment and saves water and energy. We
continuously adopt energy saving measures in our production process which enables minimal resources utilization.

(b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?

As our products are cotton based, it would enable reduced usage of energy & water by the consumers also.

Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

(@) Ifyes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainable? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Yes. We have procedures in place. Our major input is cotton. We buy cotton and produce Cotton Yam / Fabric / Garment and supply to
various Buyers including overseas Customers.

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities surounding
their place of work?

(a)  Ifyes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

Yes. We procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities surrounding the place of work, if the quality of
goods supplied by them suits our quality parameters. We encourage them to improve the quality of the products that leads to improving
their capacity and capability.
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5. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products and

waste (separately as (5%, 5-10%, 10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company has installed an Advanced Water Treatment Technology from ITALY in the Processing Unit which takes care of the effluent
treatment norms and facilitates reuse of waste water up to 95%. The advanced technology of cold processing adopted at the "State of the
Art’ Processing Unit Il reduces the water consumption by 30% and eliminates the usage of Salt completely.

Wehave Bio - Gas Generation facility that reduces the usage of LPG. We also have Waste water recycling process across all our units
which reduces the water consumption around 25%

Principle 3
1. Pleaseindicate the Total number of employees - 10,995

2.
3.

4.
5.

Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary /contractual/casual basis - NIL
Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees - 8,637

Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities - NIL
Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management?
Each unit has various workers' committees taking care of their requirements.

6. What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee association - Not Applicable

Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last
financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year - NIL

What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?
(a) Permanent Employees -100%

(b) Permanent Women Employees -100%
(e} Casual/Temporary/ Contractual Employees - Not Applicable
(d) Employees with Disabilities - Not Applicable

Principle 4

Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? - YES

Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders? - YES

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Towards this initiative, we recruit employees from the downtrodden villages. We provide trendsetter employee welfare
facilities, besides nutritious food, hygienic and comfortable living & working conditions, entertainment etc. In order to add
value to their livelihood, the Company is providing higher education and vocational training facilities to them. The
employees are also making best use of them. This initiative helps them in a big way by making them independent both
economically and socially.

Principle 5
1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group/joint Ventures / Suppliers /

2.

Contractors / NGOs / Others? - YES
Yes. Extended to the Group.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved by
the management? - NIL
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Principle 6
1

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors
/ NGOs / others.

Yes. Extended to the Group.

Does the company have strategies / initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global warming,
etc?

%‘ﬂ;ﬁmﬁ; initiatives towards making the production process ‘eco-friendly’, wherever possible, has secured certifications

i. 150-14001: 2004 Certifications for Environment Management Systems.

ii. OEKO-TEX - for environment friendly operations

jii. Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) - for organic cotton products.

iv. SA8000: 2014 for Social Accountability Management Systems.

Towards augmenting green cover, the Company has planted more than one lakh saplings in the villages.

Does the Company identify and assess potential environmental risks? - YES
Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or
s0. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed? -NO

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on — clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc? If yes, please
give hyperlink for web page etc.

Yes, in an effort to generate power in eco-friendly ways the Company has installed windmills at Theni, Tirunelveli, Tenkasi and
Coimbatore districts in India. It takes care of most of our power requirement.

Are the Emissions / Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being
reported? - YES

Number of show cause / legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as on end of
Financial Year- NIL

Principle 7

1

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your business
deals with:

CONFEDERATION OF INDIAN INDUSTRY

THE COTTON TEXTILES EXPORT PROMOTION COUNCIL

THE SOUTHERN INDIA MILLS ASSOCIATION

TAMILNADU SPINNING MILL ASSOCIATION

TIRUPUR EXPORTERS ASSOCIATION

INDIAN WIND POWER ASSOCIATION

Have you advocated / lobbied through above assodiations for the advancement or improvement of public good?; if yes specify

the broad areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security,
Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

mmoMrEE

YES, wherever required we advocated for the improvement of export policies, economic reforms etc., through the
associations.
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Principle 8

Does the company have specified programmes / initiatives / projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 87 If yes details
thereof,

Our (SR policy and the human value adding labour practices take care of this. The key areas of CSR activities are;
1. Promotion of Education.

2. Emvvironmental and livelihood

3. Social Empowerment

4. Rural Development

Our extension of higher education facilities that has tie - up with reputed universities and vocational training empower our

employees with financial & social strength. It would also have positive impact on their family and the village they belong that
would support the inclusive growth and equitable development. Extensive coverage on this is fumished in the Reports of
Directors & MDAR forming part of the Annual Report.

Are the programmes / projects undertaken through in-house team / own foundation / extemal NGO / govemment structures /
any other organization?
Our (SR activities are implemented through in-house and Charitable Trust.

Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative? - YES

What is your company's direct contribution to community development projects - Amount in INR and the details of the projects
undernaken?

During the year, the Company has spent ¥ 392.24 lakhs towards CSR activities. The details are fumished in the CSR Report.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community? Please
explain in 50 words, or so.

Yes, securing ranks & gold medals in the government examinations and employment opportunities in the Government
Deparntments, by availing our higher education and vocational training facility itself reflects the success of our initiative. As
mentioned earlier it elevates the standard of the employee as well as their family and the village they belong. So far, more than
20,000 employees are benefitted by availing higher education & vocational training facilities extended to them. On an average,
every year over 3000 employees are availing the aforesaid facilities.

Principle 9

L

2

What percentage of customer complaints / consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year. NIL

Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws? Yes /
No / NA / Remarks (additional information) - YES

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, imesponsible advertising and/or
anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in

about 50 words or so. - NO

Did your company carry out any consumer survey / consumer satisfaction trends? - YES



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit

To The Members of K.P.R. Mill Limited report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
on We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS  statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
financial statements of K.PR. Mill Limited (“the Company”),  specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31° March, 2017 and ~ "quire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
the Statement of Profit and loss including Other and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and from material misstatement.
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other An-audt wolves: perfoming: peoceduses to:-obtdin At

explanatory information. evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS standalone Ind AS finandal statements. The procedures
Financial Statements selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the  ooniai0n6 Ind AS finandial statements, whether due to fraud
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 or emor. In making those risk ass = the auditor

Cthe Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone ¢ ,niders jnternal financial control relevant to the Company's

Ind AS finandial statements that give a true and fair view of o oocion of the standalone Ind AS financial statements

the financial position, financial performance including other that give a tue and fair view in order to design audit
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An

the [DITIDEIW in accordance with the accuun'l:ing pIiﬂCipE'ES audit also incudes H‘El!.lﬂﬁﬂg the appmpﬁaten of the 51
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. accounting estimates made by the Company's Directars, as

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate el as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the  |nd AS financial statements.

Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for . pefieve that the audit evidence obtained by us is
preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS finandal statements
that give a wue and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS finandial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Auditor's Responsibility Company as at 31" March, 2017 and its profit, total

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these <omprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in

standalone Ind AS finandial statements based on our audit. equity for the year ended on that date.
In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Ac, based on our

audit we report that:

al We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS
financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on 31st March, 2017 taken on
record by the Board of Directars, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

fi  With respect to the adequacy of the intenal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A", Our repon
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's intermnal
financial controls over financial reporting.

gl With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Repont in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given
to us:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone
Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

jii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as
regards its holding and dealings in Spedified Bank
Notes as defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E)
dated the 8" November, 2016 of the Ministry of
Finance, during the period from 8" November
2016 w 30" December 2016. Based on audit
procedures performed and the representations
provided to us by the management we report that
the disclosures are in accordance with the books
of account maintained by the Company and as
produced to us by the Management.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,

2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Govemment in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

CR. Rajagopal
Place : Coimbatore Partner

Date : 03 May 2017 (Membership No.23418)



ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
1430of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial
reporting of K.P.R. MILL LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March

31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibiliies include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and emors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
intemmal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
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plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporiing was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls
systen owver financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
intemnal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ermor,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company'’s intemal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of finandal reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s intemal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the wansactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Intemmal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management overide of controls,
material misstatements due to emor or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
intenal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
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at March 31, 2017 based on the intemal control over finandal
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.0080725)

CR. Rajagopal

Place : Coimbatore Partner
Date : 03 May 2017 (Membership No. 23418)
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{Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even date)

i (@
assets.

{b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of the fixed

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the examination of
the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date, except the

following:
Particulars of the Free hold land @ in Lakhs) Remarks

Freehold land located at Kittampalayam and The title deeds are in the name of K.P.R. Spinning Mill

Thirunelveli admeasuring 19 acres and 8 acres 66.76 Private Limited, erstwhile Company that was merged

respectively. with the Company under Section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 in terms of the approval of the
Honorable High Courtls) of judicature.

Freehold land located at Arasur, Bogampatti, The title deeds are in the name of KP.R. Mill Private

Thenkasi, Thirunelveli admeasuring 40.65 acres, Limited, erstwhile Company that was merged with

1820 acres, 57.63 aces and 6 acres 64.47 the Company under Section 391 to 394 of the

respectively. Companies Act, 1956 in terms of the approval of the
Honorable High Courtls) of judicature.

Freehold land located at Tirunelveli admeasuring 9.61 The title deeds are in the name of KP.R Knits,

2 acres.

erstwhile Company that was out-right purchase.

Immovable properties of buildings whose title deeds have been charged as security for loans, guarantees are held in the name of

the Company based on the confirmations directly received by us from lenders.

(i) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no

material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans to one company covered in

the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:
{a) Theterms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prime facie, not prejudicial to the Company's Interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and in the absence of such schedule,
we are unable to comment either on the regularity of the repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest or whether

there is an overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.
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{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

(v} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year and hence
compliance with the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended with regard to the deposits accepted is not applicable.

{vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
for Textile. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however,
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutary dues in arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

lc) Details of dues of Income-tax, Service Tax and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2017 on account

of disputes are given below:
_ _ Period to J e Amount
Name of Statu Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is whl:hﬂn Siickiad Unpaid
Pending Amount @ in Lakhs) ®in
Income Tax Act, Commissioner of Income
1961 Income Tax Tax(A i), Coimbatore 2014-15 248 248
Customs, Excise and
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax Service Tax Appellate 2004-07 2752 27.52
Tribunal, Chennai
; Customs, Excise and
Centloac A% | Excise Duty Service Tax Appellate | 2005-06 382 382
Tribunal, Chennai

{viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of
loans or borowings to banks. The Company has not issued any debentures and have not made any borowings from financial
institutions or Government.

(i) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year
for the purposes for which they were raised.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no
material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(x)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 Order is not applicable to the Company.

()  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its subsidiaries or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvil The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1 A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.0080725)

CR. Rajagopal

Place : Coimbatore Parner

Date : 03 May 2017 (Membership No.23418)
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4 BalANCE SHEET

As at

As at

As at

ASSETS Note 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(1) Non- Cumrent Assets L Qinlakhy) |
(2} Property, Plant & Equipment 5 91,553 89,340 92,016
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 208 34 -
(c) Other Intangible Assets 5 46 76 110
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 8,829 7806 7988
(il Loans 7 776 808 641
{(e) Other Non - Current Assets 8 7285 8,334 6,854
Total Non - Current Assets 1,08,6%97 1,06,398 1,07.609
(2) Current Assets
(a Inventories 9 30,668 26,632 28434
(b) Financial Assets
(il Trade Receivables 10 21338 25,965 21,930
(il Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 2,808 1,858 1,930
(i) Other Financial Assets 12 5,088 3,306 3,573
(c) Other Current Assets 13 11,426 8.884 8,479
Total Cumrent Assets 71,328 66,645 64,346
Total Assets \1,!0,025 173,043 1,71,955
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 14 3,695 3,768 3,768
(b) Other Equity 15 108111 94,337 849529
Total Equity 111,806 98105 88,697
(2) Non - Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 11,196 11,746 23,007
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 5,554 5,867 4723
Total Non - Cumrent Liabilities 16,750 17,613 27,730
(3) Current Liabilities
@ Financial Liabilities
(i) Borowings 18 30,750 40,646 34,518
(il Trade Payables 19 11,367 8,452 8,358
(il Other Financial Liabilities 20 8,784 7996 11373
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 159 105 a3
{¢) Provisions 22 - 72 126
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 409 54 1,070
Total Current Liabilities 51,469 57,325 55,528
Total Liabilities 68,219 74 938 83,258
Total Equity & Liabilities 180025 173043 171955
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
e P. Kand - & Managing Director Partner
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore
03.05.2017 03.05.2017




4 sTATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

Year Ended Year Ended
Note 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
. Revenue from Operations (Gross) 24 221914 1,96,127
Il. Other Income 25 2,712 3,421
. Total Revenue (I+1l) 2,24,626 1,99,548
N

IV. Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 26 139848 1,19.723

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work - in - Progress 27 (3,614) (601)

Employee Benefits Expense 28 19,413 14,942

Finance Costs 29 4503 4,442

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 5 11,743 12,384

Other Expenses 30 21,702 26,462
V. Total Expenses \1,93,595 1,77,352
V1. Profit Before Tax (HI-V) 31,031 22,196
VL. Tax Expense

Current Tax

- Pertaining to curent year 7668 6.574 59

- Pertaining to prior years (166) 145

Deferred Tax Expense / (Credit) (313) (137)

Net Tax Expenses 7189 6,582
VIil. Profit for the year (VI-VIl) 23,842 15,614

IX. Other Comprehensive Income
Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of Actuarial gain / loss on employee defined benefit plans 15 23
X. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Vill+IX) \ 23,857 15,637

Eamings per Equity Share

Basic & Diluted (in ¥) Face value ¥ 5/- each 39 31N 2062

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR Rﬂgﬂﬂl
i i fn
PLM P. Kand .y & Managing Director er
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore

03.05.2017 03.05.2017




4 CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 23,857 15,637
Adjustments for:
Income tax Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 7189 6,582
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11,743 12,384
Loss on Sale of Assets (3) 14
Finance Costs 4,503 4,447
Interest Income (268) (300)
Dividend Income (78) (1,040)
Net gain on Financial Assets designated at FVTPL (91) (60}
Rental Income fiom Operating Leases (237) (226)
Bad Debts Written - off & Provision for Doubtful Trade and Other Receivables 16 11
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 46,631 37,444
Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments For (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventories (4,036) 1,802
Trade Receivables 4,702 (4,118)
Bank Balance not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents - Margin Deposit Account 564 (1,239)
Other Current Assets (2,554) (486)
Other Non Current Assets 271 (1,916)
60 Other Financial Assets (1,824) 373
Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Trade Payables 2915 99
Other Financial Liabilities 257 322
Cash Generated from Operations 46,926 32,281
Net Income Tax (Paid) (7147) (7775)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities w \ 39,779 24,506
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure on Property Plant & Equipments, Including Capital Advance (13,401) (9,627)
Proceeds from Sale of Property Plant & Equipments 82 244
Purchase of Non-current Investments:
- Others (1,023) 182
Interest Received:
- Subsidiaries 56 35
- Others 254 267
Dividend Received:
- Subsidiaries 26 1,026
- Others 52 14
Rental Income Received from Operating Leases 237 226

Net Cash Flow Used In Investing Activities (B) \\{ﬂ,ﬂﬂ (7633)




24 CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment for buyback of shares (9,702) -
Repayment of Loans by related party 32 (167)
Proceeds From Long-Term Borrowings 9,387 436
Repayment of Long-Term Bomrowings (9,396) (13,205)
Repayment of Other Long-Term Loans - (102)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings (9,896) 6,128
Finance Costs Paid (4,459) (5,008)
Dividends Paid (437) (5,380)
Tax on Dividend Paid (77) (885)
Net Cash Flow Used In Financing Activities (] \(21.,5&8] (18,183)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+0) 1,514 (1,310)
Add: Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 467 1777
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note No 11) 1981 467
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprises
(a) Cash on Hand 19 86
{ b)Balance with Banks:
i) In Current Accounts 651 142
i} In EEFC Accounts 1311 239
N 1,981 467 61

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
ing Di Partner
PL Murugappan P. Kandaswamy & Managing Director
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore

03.05.2017 03.05.2017




4 (HANGES IN EQUITY

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2017

(T in Lakhs)
a. Equity Share Capital
Balance as at Apiil 01, 2015 3,768
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2016 3,768
Less: Buyback of Equity Shares 73
Balance as at March 31, 2017 3,695
\_
b.Other Equity (2 in Lakhs)
Balance as at April 01, 2015 15,233 - -| 19,649 50,047 84,929
Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of
Profit & Loss - - 1,500 1,555 - 3,055
Profit for the year - - - - 15,591 15,591
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 23 23
Interim Dividend - - - -l (3391) (3,391)
Final Dividend for 2014 -15 paid - = - - (1,884) (1,884)
Preference Dividend for 2014-15 paid - . . - (60) (60)
Tax on Dividend - - (871) (871)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - - (1555) (1,555)
62 Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve . - - -l @soo)|  (1,500)
Balance as at March 31, 2016 15,233 - 1500| 21,204| 56400 94,337
Profit for the year - - - - 23,842 23,842
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 15 15
Transfer from Retzined Eamings - - 73 2,386 - 2,459
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve . - - - (73) (73)
Premium on Buyback of Equity Shares - - - - {9,629) (9,629
Transfer to General Reserve - - - -l  (2386) (2,386)
Final Dividend related to 2015-16 paid - - - - (377) (377)
Tax on Dividend - - - - (77) (77)
Balance as at March 31, 2017 15,233 - 1573| 23590 67,715 108111
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
PL M — P Kand my & Managing Director Partner
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore
03.05.2017 03.05.2017




1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

KPR Mill Limited is one of the largest vertically integrated
apparel manufacturing Companies in India. The Company
produces Yamn, Knitted Fabric, Readymade Garments and
Wind power. It has state-of-the-art production facilities in the
State of Tamil Nadu, India.

The Company's shares are listed in BSE LTD (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE).

Standards issued but not yet effective

In March 2017 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments)
Rules,2017notifying amendments to Ind AS 7 "Statement of
Cash Flows’ and Ind AS 102, ‘share-based payment’. These
amendments are in accordance with the recent amendments
made by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to
IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows'and IFRS 2, 'Share-based
payment,’ respectively. The amendments are applicable from
1 April 2017

Amendments to Ind AS 107

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the enlities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statement to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flow and non- cash
changes, suggesting inclusion of a recondilliation between
the opening and closing balances in the Balance sheet for
liabilities arising from financing activities to meet the
disclosure requirement.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the
amendment and the effect on the financial statements is
being evaluated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:

i} The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

(il For all periods up to and including the year ended 31
March 2016, the Company prepared and presented its

4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

financial statements in accordance with Accounting
Standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP"). These financial
staternents for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first
financial statements the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. Reconciliation and description of the
effect of the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS is given in
Note 4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT:

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
assetin its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices induded within
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4 ;\CCOUNTING POLICIES

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

directly or indirectly. Valuation technigques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),
Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for centain financial assets measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period (refer accounting
policy regarding fair value measurement).

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values
are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise
indicated,

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the
following material items that have been measured at fair
value as required by relevant Ind AS.

i. Derivative financial instruments;

ii, Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments) and

jii. Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.
USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

D)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company
are measured using the cumency of the primary economic
envionment in which these entities operate (le. the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee, the national curency of India,
which is the functional currency of the Company.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost (e.g. on FIFO / specific
identification method) and the net realisable value after
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where
considered necessary. Cost includes all charges in bringing
the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other
levies, insurance and receiving charges. Work-in-progress
and finished goods include appropriate proportion of
overheads and, where applicable, excise duty.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (FOR PURPOSES OF CASH
FLOW STATEMENT)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby
profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than freehold land and properties under construction)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.



E) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales are recognised, net of retumns and trade discounts, on
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to
customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude sales tax
and value added tax. Sale of Service and revenue from sale of
windmill power are recognised when services are rendered
and related costs are incurmed.

+ the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goads;

= the Company retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

+ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

= itis probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Company; and the costs
incumed or to be incumed in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

OTHER INCOME

Dividend Income is recognised when right to receive the
income is established. Interest income is recognised on time
proportion basis (accrual basis) taking into account the
amount outstanding and rate applicable. Export incentives

are accounted in the year of exports based on eligibility and
expected amount on realisation.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not
depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An item of propenty, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the camying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

- ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue
with the camying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of April 01, 2015 (rransition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that camying
value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Machinery Spares including spare parts, stand-by and
senvicing equipment are capitalised as property, plant and
equipment if they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment i.e. if the company intends to use these for more
than a period of 12 months. These spare parts capitalized are
depreciated as perind AS -16.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each
component/part of the asset separately, if the
component/part has a cost which is significant to the 1otal
cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different
from that of the remaining asset.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are camied at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the camying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Factory Building =~ 30years

Non Factory Building ~ 60 years

Plant & Equipments ~ 10years

Electrical ~ 14years
Computers ~ 3 years
Fumnitures ~ 10years
Vehicles ~ 8-10years
Wind Mill ~ 12years

Intangible assets ~ 3 Years
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4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Capital work-in-progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are caried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, bomowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy.  Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other propery assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATIONS

Transactions in foreign cumency are translated into the
respective functional cumencies using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at the exchange
rates prevailing at reporiing date of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign curencies are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss and reported within the
account caption pertaining to the nature of transaction.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
foreign cumency and measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of
transaction.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of
the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trade) are recognised on trade date. While loans, borrowings
and payables are recognised at net of directly attributable
transaction costs,

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial
instruments of the Company are classified in the following
categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising
amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOC!), equity instruments at
FVTOC! or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL),
non derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL

and derivative financial instruments (under the category of
financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL
The classification of financial instruments depends on the
objective of the business model for which it is held.
Management determines the classification of its financial
instruments at initial recognition.
a) Non-derivative financial assets
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:
(a) the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 1o
collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
They are presented as cument assets, except for those
maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which
are presented as non-cument assets, Financial assets are
measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently camied at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment loss.
Amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other
advances and eligible current and non-cument assets,
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in
banks and demand deposits with banks which can be
withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty on the
principal.
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents including cash on hand, in banks and demand
deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand, book overdraft and are considered
part of the Company’s cash management system.
(i) Debtinstrumentsat FVTOCI
A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:
{a) the objective of the business model is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and



(b) the asset’s contractual cash flow represent SPPI

Debt instruments included in FVTOC category are measured
initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value plus
transaction costs. Fair value movements are recognised in
other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the Company
recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in statement of profit and
loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit and loss. Interest eamed is recognised under the
effective interest rate (EIR) model.

(iii) Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments held for trading is classified as FVTPL For all
other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value in 0OCl. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as
FVTOQ, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividend are recognised in OCl which is not
subsequently recycled to statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial
asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
amortised cost or as FYTOC, is classified as FVTPL

In addition the Company may elect to designate the financial
assel, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCO
criteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. The
Company has not designated any finandial asset as FVTPL
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair values with all changes in the statement of
prafit and loss.

b) Non-derivative financial liabilities

(il Financial liabilities at amontised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are represented by
borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized
at fair value, and subsequently caried at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

(ii) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represented by contingent
consideration are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

¢} Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as
foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency assets
or liabilities and forecasted cash flows denominated in
foreign cumencies. The counter pary for these contracts is
generally a bank.

Derivatives are recognized and measured at fair value.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in statement of
profit and loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND EXPORT
INCENTIVES

Govermment grants and subsidies are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and the grants /
subsidies will be received. Government grants whose
primary condition is that the Company should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are presented
by deducting them from the camying value of the assets. The
grant is recognised as income over the life of a depreciable
asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based
on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the
same.

Government grants in the nature of promoters’ contribution
like investment subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily
expected in respect thereof, are treated as capital reserve,
Government grants in the form of non-monetary assets,
given at a concessional rate, are recorded on the basis of
their acquisition cost. In case the non-monetary asset is
given free of cost, the grant is recorded at a nominal value,
Governmment grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incumed or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Company with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

K) INVESTMENTS

Long term investments (excluding investment properties) are
camied at cost less provision for diminution other than
temporary in the value of such investments. Current
investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Cost of
investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage,
fees and duties.

Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the company
The Company accounts for the each category of investments
in subsidiaries at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27- Separate
Financial Statements,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Short Term

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of other
long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees upto the reporting date.

(b) Long Term Post Retirement

Post Retirement Benefits comprise of Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance and Gratuity which are
accounted for as follows:

i) Provident Fund & Employee State Insurance

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

ii) Gratuity Fund

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being camied out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on

plan assets ( excluding net interest), is reflected immediately
in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained eamings and is
not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.

iiil Leave encashment
There is no scheme for encashment of unavailed leave.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss inthe
period in which they are incurred,

The Company identifies primary segments based on the
dominant source, nature of risks and retums and the intemal
organisation and management structure. The operating
segments are the segments for which separate finandial
information is available and for which operating profit / loss
amounts are evaluated regulady by the executive
Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in
line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment
revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment
liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.
Inter - segment revenue is accounted on the basis of
transactions which are primarily determined based on
market / fairvalue factors.
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4 p\CCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate tothe ) TAXATION

Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on
reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated
revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities”.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally
recognised on a straight - line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to
increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which
such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
{loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per
share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax
(including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges 1o expense
or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
eamings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a
later date, The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted
for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value lie. average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented. The
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and
bonus shares, as appropriate.

income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

i) CURRENT TAX

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax’ as reported
in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

ii) DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the camying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Defemed 1ax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, defered tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interest are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future,
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4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

iii) CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX FOR THE YEAR

Current and deferred tax are recagnised in profit and loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the cument and defered tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where curmrent tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products
are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a
product’s technical feasibility has been established, in which
case such expenditure is capitalised. The amount capitalised
comprises expenditure that can be directly attributed or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating,
producing and making the asset ready for its intended use.
Fixed assets utilised for research and development are
capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the policies
stated for Fixed Assets,

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
OTHER THAN GOODWILL

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the
camying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exjsts, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

n

When itis not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units, for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impaiment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its canying amount, the
camying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit and loss

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
camying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss  recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Provision are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to



settle the present obligation, its camying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

INSURANCE CLAIMS

Insurance claims are accounted on the basis of claims
admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

SERVICE TAX INPUT CREDIT

Service tax input credit is accounted in the books in the
period in which the underying service received is accounted
and when there is reasonable certainty in availing / utilising
the credits.

EXCISE DUTY

The Company has opted to adopt 'Exempted Route’ under
Central Excise Rules for local sales. Accordingly, CENVAT
credit on inputs is not available to the Company and no
excise duty is payable on sales of manufactured goods.

OPERATING CYCLE

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company
and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has

4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose
of classification of its assets and liabilities as cument and
non-current.

EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IND AS

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31
March, 2017 are the first annual financial statement prepared
by the company in order to comply with Ind AS. The adoption
of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101,
using April 1,2015 as the transition date. The transition was
carried out from previous GAAP (based on the AS framework)
to Ind AS. The effect of adopting Ind As has been summarized
in the reconciliations provided below.

Ind AS 101 generally requires full retrospective application of
the standards in force at the first reporting date. However, Ind
AS 101 allows certain exemptions in the application of
particular Standards to prior periods in order to assist
companies with the transition process.

Recondiliations

The Accounting policies as stated above in note 3 have been
applied in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March, 2017 the financial statement for the year
ending 31 March, 2016 and the preparation of an opening Ind
AS statement of financial position as at 1 April, 2015. In
Preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2016, the
company has adjusted amounts reported in financial
statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAF.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position,
finandial performance is set outin the following tables.
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4 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IND AS

i. Reconciliations of Other Equity (% in Lakhs)
e Asat3is [ Asail
Particulars arch 2016 | Aoril 2015
Equity as per previous GAAP 93,722 82,572
Add : Dividend as per "Ind AS" 459 2,261
“Ind AS" 109 Adjustments 182 122
Less: Preference Dividend 26 26
Equity as per "Ind AS” 94,337 84,929
ii. Reconciliations of Total Comprehensive Income (¥ in Lakhs)
| For the Year
Net Profit as per previous GAAP 15,554
Actuarial gain / loss on employee defined benefit plans recognised in 23
other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)
"Ind AS" 109 Adjustments 60
Total Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) under”Ind AS” 15,637

jiii. Explanation of material adjustments to statement of cash flows for the year ended 31" March, 2016

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has no material impact on the Statement of Cash Flows
except bank overdraft which has been considered as part of cash & cash equivalent.
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Additions
Disposals
Depreciation Expense

Balance as at March 31, 2016

Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2017




FINANCIAL ASSETS

INVESTMENTS
At Cost
Unquoted (all fully paid up)
a) In Equity Instruments
i) Subsidiaries

1,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 1,00,000 and April 1, 2015: 1,00,000) Shares of ¥ 10
each in Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED.

50,000 (March 31, 2016: 50,000 and April 1, 2015: 50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10
each in Galaxy Knits Limited.

15,10,000 (March 31, 2016: 15,10,000 and April 1, 2015: 15,10,000) Equity Shares
of ¥ 10 each in Jahnvi Motor Private Limited.

4,16,666 (March 31, 2016: 4,16,666 and April 1, 2015: 4,16,666) Equity Shares of T
10 each at a Premium of T 20 each in Jahnvi Motor Private Limited.

10,50,000 (March 31, 2016: 10,50,000 and April 1, 2015: 10,50,000) Equity Shares
of ¥ 10 each at a Premium of T 140 per share in KPR Sugar Mill Limited.

10,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 10,00,000 and April 1, 2015: 10,00,000) Equity Shares
of ¥ 10 each in KPR Sugar Mill Limited.

ii) Other Entities
Nil (March 31,2016: Nil and April 1, 2015: 700 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each at a
premuium of T 265 per Share in ARS. Metals Private Limited.

Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil and April 1, 2015: 34,00,000) Equity Shares of T 10 each
of Cauvery Power Generation Chennai Pvt. Ltd.

Nil (March 31,2016: 3,500 and April 1, 2015: 3,500) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each at
a premium of ¥ 126 per Share in Surya Dev Alloys and Power Put. Ltd.

1,00,84,629 (March 31, 2016: 6,00,000 and April 1, 2015: Nil) Equity Shares of T
10 each of Ind Bharath Powergen Com Limited.

1,80,000 (March 31, 2016: 100,000 and April 1,2015: Nil) Equity shares of ¥ 100
each of Somanur Water Scheme Pvt Ltd.

b) Investment in Preference shares
Subsidiaries

3783,000 (March 31,2016: 3783,000 and April 1, 2015: 3783,000) 7% Optionally
Convertible Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of T 10 each at a
Premium of ¥ 140 per share in KPR Sugar Mill Limited.

LOANS
Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated
Loan to Related Party

M/s Jahnvi Motor Private Limited

As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

As at

As at

10 10 10

1 5 5
151 151 151
125 125 125
1,575 1,575 1,575
100 100 100

- - 2

- - 340

- 5 5
1,008 60 -
180 100 -
5,675 5,675 5,675
N 8,829 7806 7988
776 808 641

808

641
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8 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(i) Capital Advances

(i) Advances other than capital advances
Security Deposit
Deposit with Central Excise & Service Tax
Advance to Suppliers

(iii) Others
Prepaid Expenses - Lease Hold Land

INVENTORIES
(At lower of cost & Net realisable value)

Raw Materials

Stock-in-process **

Finished Goods

Stores, Spares, Packing & Others

** Includes Yamn ¥ 1,595 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ 1,389 Lakhs),

Fabric T 12 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 12 Lakhs) and Garments ¥ 179 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 37 Lakhs)

The Cost of Inventories recognised during the year was ¥ 1,36,234 Lakhs

(Pr¥r. ¥ 1,19.122 Lakhs) The Mode of Valuation of inventories has been stated in

Note 3A Average age of inventory is less than 90 days only.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables - Quistanding for a period more than 6 months
- Unsecured considered good
- Unsecured and considered doubtful

Trade Receivables

Less: Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables

(i) The average credit period ranges from 30 days to 90 days.

(ii) Since we are having whole tumover insurance policy for our domestic as
well as export business, expected credit loss provision does not required.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents As per Ind AS 7
Cash on Hand®
Balance with Banks
i) In Current Accounts
i) In EEFC Accounts

Other Bank Balances

i) In Deposit Accounts #
ii) In Earmarked Deposit accounts - Unpaid dividend accounts

Total as per Ind AS 7

As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

1,405 2,183 2538

1163 1439 1467
31 31 31
4347 4,347 2,500

339 334 318
N 785 834 685

18579 19,013 22175
1,786 1,438 1201
7541 4,275 3911
2,762 1,906 1,147

\MH 26,632 28,434

250 70 67
113 132 132
21,088 25,895 21,863
113 132 132

\21.33! 25,965 21,930

19 86 56
651 142 710
1311 239 1,011
1,981 467 1777
820 1,384 145
7 7 8

827 1391 153

& 2,808 1,858 1,930




As at

0Of the above, the balances that meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents as
per Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements is ¥ 1,981 Lakhs (PrYr. ¥ 467 Lakhs).

# Margin Deposits is T 820 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 1,384 Lakhs)

* The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period
November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016 are:

(in¥)
Particulars SBN | Other Notes| Total

Closing cash on hand as on November 08, 2016 | 61,57500 83,734 | 62,41,234
Add : Permitted Receipts - | 69,39110 | 69,39,110
Less : Permitted Payments 54,05,659 |54,05659

61,57500 - | 61,57500

As at

As a1
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

Less : Amount Deposited in Banks
Closing Cash on Hand as on December 30, 2016 -| 1617185 | 1617185
12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Interest Accrued on Deposits 80 122 124

Income Receivable 960 768 1,168

Technology Upgradation Fund Subsidy Receivable 161 610 478

Investment Promotion Subsidy Receivables 3,614 1624 1,681

Others 273 182 122
N\ 5.088 3,306 3573

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advance for Purchase 10,845 8132 71925

Loans and Advances to Employees

Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated 37 35 34

Others (Primarily prepaid expenses) 544 457 450

Balances with Government Authorities

VAT Credit Receivable - 260 70

SHARE CAPITAL N 11,426 8884 8,479

a) Authorised

9,00,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 4,00,00,000 and April 1, 2015: 4,00,00,000)

Equity Shares of T 5 each with voting rights (Pr. Yr. Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each

with voting rights) 4,500 4,000 4,000

10,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 15,00,000 and April 1, 2015: 15,00,000) 7% Redeemable

Cumulative Non - Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each 1,000 1,500 1,500

b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up b 5,500 5,500 5,500

738,95,784 (March 31, 2016: 3,76,82,892 and Aprill, 2015: 3,76,82,892)

Equity Shares of 2 5 each fully paid - up with voting rights 3,695 3,768 3,768

{Pr. Yr. Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each with voting rights) U 3,695 3,768 3768

14.1 Term / Rights to Shares
Equity Shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of T 5 per share. The holder of each equity share is
entitied to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the

Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

During the year, the amount of per share interim dividend paid to equity shareholders was T Nil (31st March 2016: T 9 per share}
and pershare final dividend recommended for distribution to equity shareholderis ¥ 0.75 per share (31st March 2016: T 1 per

share).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after settling the dues of preferential and other creditors as per priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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14.2 Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
a. Equity Shares with voting rights

Number of Shares | (T in Lakhs) | Number of Shares | (T in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 753,65,784 3,768 3,76,82,892 3,768
Less : Buyback 14,70,000 73 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 73895784 3,695 3,76,82 892 3,768
b. 7% Redeemable Cumulative Non - Convertible Preference Shares
' Number of Shares| (¥ in Lakhs) | Number of Shares | (7 in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year - - 15,00,000 1,500
Less: Changes During the year (Redeemed) - - 15,00,000 1,500
Outstanding at the end of the year - 8 - "
14.3 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company
Equity Shares
| As at 31" March, 2017 As at 31" March, 2016
Particulars Number of % Number of %
Shares Shares
Sri. K.P. Ramasamy 1,59,50,000 2158 81,27684 2157
Sri. KPD Sigamani 1,59.50,000 2158 81,285,634 2157
Sri. P. Nataraj 1,59,50,000 2158 81,27733 2157
DSP Blackrock Micro Cap Fund 36,13,057 4.88 18,99,385 L04
As per the records of the Company, including its register of
shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders
reganding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal
and beneficial ownership of shares as at the balance sheet date.
As at As at

OTHEREQUITY
Securities Premium
Opening Balance
Closing Balance
Amount received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been
classified as security share premium.
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Add : Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Buyback on Capital Redemption
Closing Balance
Capital redemption reserve is created out of profit on redemption of capital
General Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing Balance

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

As at

15,233 15,233 15,233
15,233 15,233 15,233
1,500 - -
= 1,500 -

H ¥, -
1573 1,500 -
21,204 19,649 18,189
2386 1,555 1,460
23,590 21,204 19,649




16.1

16.2

163
16.4
16.5

The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained eamings for
appropriations purposes. As the general reserve is created by transfer from one
component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the general reserve will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Retained Eamings
Opening Balance

Less: Depreciation on transition to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on tangible
fixed assets with nil remaining useful life (Net of defermed tax)

Add: Profit for the year
“Ind AS" 109 Adjustments

Less:
Interim Dividend ¥ Nil per share (Pr¥r ¥ 9 per share)
Final Dividend
Preference Dividend
Premium on Buyback of Equity Share
Tax on Dividend

Transferred to:

General Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve

Closing Balance

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS

From Banks (Secured)

Term Loans

From Others (Unsecured)

Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil and Aprill, 2015: 15,00,000)

7% Redeemable Cumulative Mon-Convenible Preference Shares of T 100 each

Term Loans from banks are secured by pari-passu first charge on fixed assets
and second charge on current assets of the Company.

As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

As at

As at

56,400 50,047 38,808

: : 61

23857 15614 14572

- - 122

- 3391 1,507

377 1884 -

- 60 105

9,629 - -

77 871 322

2,386 1,555 1,460

73 1500 -

67,715 56,400 50,047
108111 94337 84929
11196 1,76 21507

_ . 1,500
L9616 23007

i) Loan amounting to ¥ 354 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ 436 Lakhs) is repayable in 18 quarerly installments.

i) Loan amounting to ¥ 1,874 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 2,099 Lakhs) is repayable in 21 quarterly installments.
iii) Loan amounting to ¥ 6,717 Lakhs (Pr. Y. ¥ 15,806 Lakhs) is repayable in 8 quarterly instaliments.

iv) Loan amounting to ¥ 9,387 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T Nil) is repayable in 24 quaterly instaliments.

Interest rate relating to term loans from banks is in the range of 9.65% to 11.25%.(Pr. Yr. 10.75 % to 11.25%)
The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of principal and interest during the year.
For the current maturities of long-term borrowings, refer Note 20 Other Financial Liabilities.
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17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets
Add : Deferred tax liability for current year
Less : Deferred tax asset for eardier years due to change in method of
depreciation as per New Companies Act, 2013
Deferred Tax Assels
Disallowances under Section 40(al(i), 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Closing Balance
Opening Balance
Net Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit)
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement

CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
18 BORROWINGS
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks (Secured)
Loans for Working Capital
Packing Credit
Other - Acceptances Under Buyers Credit

18.1 The above loans are secured by first charge on inventories and book debts
and second charge on fixed assets to lending banks on pari-passu basis.

18.2 The Company has not defaulted in its repayments of the loans
and interest during the year.

19 TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises
Other than Acceptances (Refer Note 33)

The average credit period on purchase of goods and services are within 60 days.
Trade payable are non- interest bearing.
20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of
(i) Long Term Loan (Refer Note 16.1 to 16.5)
{ii} Interest Free Sales Tax Loan
Unclaimed Dividend
Interest accrued but not due on bormowings
Statutory Payables
Other Liabilities

As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

As at

As at

5,867 6,004 6,011

= - 25

= - 32

(313) (137) .
5.554 5867 6,004
5,867 6,004 6,011
(313) (137) )

- - 1,281

N 5554 5,867 4,723
16,433 20,131 29,220
14,317 13,768 5,298

- 6,747 -
\I'II,E'II 40,646 34,518
11,367 8,452 8,358
\1.1..!6? 8,452 8,358
7136 6,595 9,603

- - 102

7 7 8

55 11 577

1,569 1372 1,005

17 11 78

8784

11373




21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance from Customers

22 PROVISIONS

Provision - Others
Provision for Proposed Preference Dividend
Provision for Tax on Preference Dividend

23 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Net)

Provision for Tax®

* Net of Advance Tax paid ¥ 7259 Lakhs (Pr. Y. ¥ 6,520 Lakhs).

- 23.1 INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN PROFIT & LOSS

Current Tax
Cument Income Tax Charge
Adjustment in respect of Current Income Tax of Prior Years

Deferred Tax
In respect of Current Year

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting
profit as follows
Profit Before Tax

Income Tax expense calculated @ 34.608%
Effect of expenses that is exempt from taxation
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determing taxable profit

Adjustments recognised in the Current Year in relation to the Cument Tax of
Prior Years
Deferred Tax for Current Year

Total Income Tax Recognised

As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

As at

159 105 83

\ 159 105 83
- 60 105

- 12 21

NG = 72 126
409 54 1,070

\ 409 54 1,070

Ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

For the Year For the Year

¥ in Lakhs)

7668 6,574

(166) 145

7502 6,719

(313) (137)

N 7189 6,582
31,031 22,196

10,739 7682

(4,571) (2,780)

1,500 1672

7668 6,574

(166) 145

(313) (137)

b 7189 6,582

81




82

24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products (Refer Note 24.1)
Sale of Services (Refer Note 24.2)

Other Operating Revenues (Refer Note 24.3)

Revenue from Operations (Gross)

24.1 Sale of Products

Garment
Yam

Fabric

Cotton Waste

24.2 Sale of Services

Processing & Fabrication Income

24.3 Other Operating Revenues

25

Export Incentives
Others (Primarily Scrap)

OTHER INCOME

Interest from
Bank Deposits
Others (Refer Note 36.3¢)

Dividend Income
From Current Investments
Others

From Long-Term Investments
Subsidiaries

Investment Promotion Subsidy

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)

Miscellaneous Income (Refer Note 36.3h)

Net gain on Financial Assets designated at FVTPL

For the Year
Ended
31.03.2017

For the Year
Ended
31.03.2016

7 in Lakhs)
207728 180632
8634 11,287
5552 4208
221914 196,127
31,584 21124
121,046 104124
47776 48,200
1322 7184
2,07728 180,632
8,634 11,287
8,634 11,287
5,059 3.877
493 331
5552 4,208
120 106
148 194
52 14
26 1,026
1,990 1774
3 -
282 247
91 60
2,712 3.421




26 (COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
a) Opening Stock

Cotton
Dyes & Chemicals

Yam , Fabric & Garments

b) Add: Purchases & Production Expenses

Cotton
Dyes & Chemicals

Yarn, Fabric, Polyster & Garments
Production Expenses
Trims, Packing & Others (Consumption)

¢) Less : Closing Stock

Cotton
Dyes & Chemicals

Yamn, Fabric & Garments

27 (CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK - IN - PROGRESS

a) Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress

b) Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress

Net (Increase)

For the Year
Ended
31.03.2017

For the Year
Ended
31.03.2016

(% in Lakhs)

18,273 21,798
224 317
516 60
19,013 22,175
111,131 96,083
2492 2,397
20,167 14,992
3,268 1,283
2356 1806
139414 116,561
17,431 18,273
147 224
1001 516
18,579 19,013
139848 119,723
AN
4,275 3911
1,438 1,201
5713 5112
7541 4,275
1786 1,438
9,327 5713
(601)
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For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

 in Lakhs)

Salaries and Wages, including bonus 16,800 12,896
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 1,402 1,093
Staff Welfare Expenses 1211 953
\ 19,413 14,942
29 FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense on
Term Loans 1,505 2,597
Working Capital Loans 2,555 1,487
Others 443 358
4,503 4,442
Average Interest Cost Refer Note 16.3 AN
30 OTHER EXPENSES
Power & Fuel 9135 12721
Consumption of Stores Spares and Packing Materials 1,916 1,810
84 Repairs and Maintenance
Building 384 246
Machinery 4,417 6,678
Others 377 224
Insurance Charges 168 168
Administration Expenses
Professional Fees 165 92
Rent (Refer Note 41) 88 77
Rates & Taxes 114 122
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 32) 9 9
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) - 14
Travelling Expenses 398 296
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 392 341
Donations 325 318
Bad Debts Written Off 16 1n
General Expenses 298 197
Selling Expenses
Freight & Forwarding 1,669 1,610
Sales Commission 1,257 1,440
Other Selling Expenses 574 88
21,702 26,462




31 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

1. Contingent Liabilities
(a) Disputed Liabilities in Appeal

(i) Demand Notice from Indian Bank towards Prepayment Charges. The same has
been contested in writ filed before the High Court of Judicature at Madras which has
restrained Indian Bank from applying proceeds of TUF subsidy towards its demand for
prepayment charges. The case is pending disposal.

(il Income Tax demands

(i) Central Excise demands

(iv) Service Tax demands

(b) Bank Guarantees in favour of parties

() Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation [TANGEDCO]
{iiy Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board

(i) Suryadev Alloys and Power Private Limited

(iv) ARS.Energy Private Limited

(v} Bank Note Paper Mill India Private Limited

{vi) Ind Bharath Power Gencom Limited

(vii) New Tirupur Area Water Development Corporation Limited

(c) Letter of Credit Facility in favour of Suppliers
Foreign Letter of Credit
{d) Discounted sales invoices
Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of
judgement / decisions pending at various forums / authorities.
IL. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for

(b) Other Commitments

(i) The Company has given Corporate guarantees to banks / finandial Institutions /
Others on behalf of M/s Quantum KNITS PVT. LUMITED, M/s Jahnvi Motor Private
Limited and M/s K.P.R. Sugar Mill Limited

(i) Export obligations against the import licenses taken for import of capital goods
under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme and advance license scheme for
impont of raw material. The duty implication involved is¥ 2,194 Lakhs
(Pr¥r. ¥ 1,031 Lakhs)

As at

As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

82
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28

7595
1971

602

38,605

82
3230

28

164

374
67

891
28

5,445
2,738

3,763

36,605

13,163
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32 Payment to Auditors

(Zin Lakhs)

Statutory Audit Fees 8 8
Expenses (incl. Senvice Tax) 1 1
Total 9 9

33 Disclosure with respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

In accordance with the Notification No: G.S.R679 (E) dated 04.09.2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, certain
disclosures are required 1o be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and
Medium Development Act, 2006. The Company circulated for the information of its suppliers about their coverage under the said
Act. Since there is no response from supplier, no disclosures have been made in these Financial Statements. However, in the
considered view of the management and as relied upon by the auditors, impact of interest, if any that may be payable in
accordance with the provisions of this Act is not expected to be material.

34. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per the
provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to T 392.24 Lakhs (Pr.¥r. ¥ 340.50 Lakhs). Amount spent during the
year on (SR activities (included in note 31 of the Statement of Profit & Loss) as under:

(T in Lakhs)

Promotion of Education 386.54 338.00
Ensuring Environmental Sustainability 5.70 =
Enhancing Vocational skill of - 0.50
Differently abled person

Eradicating Hunger, Poverty and Malnutrition - 1.00
Disaster Relief - 1.00
Total 39224 34050

35. Financial Instruments

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concemn while maximising
the retumn to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borowings as detailed in notes 16, 18 and 20 off set by cash

and bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows (7 in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
Debt * 49,082 58,987 65,730
Less : Cash and Bank Balances 2,808 1,858 1,930
Net Debt 46,274 57,129 63,800
Total Equity 111,806 98,105 88,697
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 4139 % 58.23 % 7193 %

* Debt is defined as long-term borowings, short-term borrowings and cumrent maturities of long term borowings as
described in notes 16, 18 and 20.




Financial Risk Management objectives

The Company's corporate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates eccess to domestic  and Intemational
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risk relating to the operation of the Company through intemal risk reports
which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk_The use of financial derivatives is govemed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors,
which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-
derivatives financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by
the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instrument, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes

Market Risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company enters
into plain vennila forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk including:

Details of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposures
() Outstanding forward exchange contracts for (i) The year - end unhedged foreign currency exposures

hedging purposes as on 31st March, 2017 are given below
Cumency |€ Lok | /S As at 31" March, 2017 As at 31" March, 2016

(7184) Buy Z in Lakhs FC in Lakhs Z in Lakhs FC in Lakhs

e 5,616 Sell 6890 $106 591 $9
{;:1;;1 55:::: 629 €9 33 €0

-5 9?4 flz = i

BRO| MR | oa7n | sel : § 2456 GGE)
6,189 Sell = = (5,069) ($76)

GBP INR :
(2,510) | Sell z z (1,009) CHF (15)

Note: Figures in bracket relates to the previous year

i) Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on imports and exports.
ii.) The Company covering its currency billing under forward cover and hence sensitivity analysis is not required.

Foreign Currency Risk Management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed through plain vennila forward foreign exchange contracts.

Equity Risk

There is no material equity risk relating to the Company's equity investments which are detailed in note 5 “Investments”. The
Company's equity investments majorly comprises of strategic investments rather than trading purposes.

Interest Risk

The Company bormow funds from banks is only at fixed rates, the rates are reviewed every year by the bank. There is no material
interest risk relating to the Company's financial liabilities.

Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
Company's domestic & export receivables are covered under credit insurance.

Liquidity Risk Management

Ulimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

All current financial liabilities are repayable within ane year. The contractual maturities of non cument liabilities are disclosed in note
no. 16.




36.1
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Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures under “Ind AS" 24— Related Party Disclosure, as identified and disclosed by the Management and relied upon

by the Auditors:
Name of related parties and nature of relationships
Key Management Personnel Sri K.P. Ramasamy
Sri KPD Sigamani
Sri P. Nataraj
Sri CR Anandaksishnan
Sri EK Sakthivel
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel Smt D. Geetha (Daughter of Sri. KPD Sigamani)
Enterprises owned by Key M/s K.P.R. Developers Limited
Management Personnel/Directors or M/s K P R Cements Private Limited
their relatives M/s K P R Holdings Private Limited
M/s K P R Agro Farms Private Limited
M/s K P R Charities
Subsidiary Companies M/s Quantum KNITS PVT. UMITED
M/s KPR Sugar Mill Limited
M/s Jahnvi Motor Private Limited
M/s Galaxy Knits Limited
362 Transactions during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date @ in Lakhs)
mmy - Koy w || coitaey | Talmai
Movce of Ramxion Personnel /| Mer28%al | panagerial | Company | 31.03.2017
Directors or their Persons ' '
relatives
Purchase of Goods / Assets : ; : o7 o7
Sales of Goods / Assets - i ' {gsﬁ {93;:!;
: = 1 - . 1
Lease Rent Paid Kk 1) ] _ (1)
. - - - 224 224
Lease Rent Received i = - (212 (212)
= 2733 6 - 2739
Remuneration / Salary _ 2,042) @2 ) (2.064)
Processing / Senvice Charges Income 7 : | o T
Processing / Service Charges Expenses N - ) 5‘5 Sf
Interest Receipts ) ) ) iﬁ?;] E?;}
300 - = . 300
Donations (300 . _ i (300)
- - = 7641 7641
Investments i} ) h 7.641) 7,641)
Loans & Advances - - oo i
x - - 11,867 11,867
Amount Receivable _ _ i (6.740) 6,740)
= 1,652 = - 1,652
Amount Payable . (1,217} . - (1.217)

(Previous year figures are shown in brackets)




36.3

Details of transactions with related parties

a. Purchase of Goods / Assets ® in Lakhs)
Name 2016-17 2015 - 16
M/s. KPR Sugar Mill Limited 985 527
M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited g 450
Total 985 977
b. Sale of Goods / Assets ® in Lakhs)
Name 2016-17 2015 - 16
M/s. KPR Sugar Mill Limited 8,192 9,848
Total 8,192 9,848
c. Processing / Service Charges Income (¥ in Lakhs)
Name 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Ms. KPR. Sugar Mill Limited 6,595 7948
Total 6,595 7948
d. Processing / Service Charges & in Lakhs)
Name 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
M’s. KPR. Sugar Mill Limited 56 -
Total 56 2
e. Interest Receipts ® in Lakhs)
' Name 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited 74 68
Total 74 68
f Donations (T in Lakhs)
Name 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
M/s. K P R Charities 300 300
Total 300 300
g Lease Rent Paid (¥ in Lakhs)
Name 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Sri. K.P. Ramasamy 0.19 0.19
Sri. KPD Sigamani 0.19 0.19
Sri. P. Nataraj 0.18 0.18
Total 0.56 0.56
h. Lease Rent Received & in Lakhs)
Name 2016 - 17 2015-16
M/s. KP.R. Sugar Mill Limited 224 212
Total 224 212

89




90

i Remuneration / Salary

( in Lakhs)

Sri. KP Ramasamy 897 672
Sri. KPD Sigamani 897 672
Sri. P. Nataraj 897 672
Sni. CR. Anandakrishnan 24 24
Sni. EK. Sakthivel 18 18
Smt. D. Geetha 6 6
Total 2,739 2,064
j. Amount Payable @ in Lakhs)
Sri. KP Ramasamy 546 405
Sri. KPD Sigamani 538 405
Sri. P. Nataraj 568 407
Total 1,652 1217
k. Amount Receivable (% in Lakhs)
M/s. Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED 1 -
M/s. KPR Sugar Mill Limited 11,866 6,740
Total 11,867 6,740
. Loans & Advances  in Lakhs)
Name 2006-17 | 2015-16
M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited 776 808
Total 776 808
m. Investments 7 in Lakhs)
Equity Shares
M/s. KPR Sugar Mill Limited 1,675 1,675
M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited 276 276
M/s. Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED 10 10
M/s. Galaxy Knits Limited 5 5
Preference Shares
M/s. KPR Sugar Mill Limited 5,675 5,675
Total 7641 7641
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Expenditure in Foreign Currency and CF Value of Impons

® in Lakhs)

Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
(a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Travel, sales commission etc, 215 401
Interest 205 135
Professional Fees 37 5
Others 16 o
(b) Value of Imports on CIF basis
Raw Material 36,848 14,634
Stores and Spare parts 534 580
Machinery 6,781 4,785
Total 44,636 20,540
Eamnings in Foreign Exchange ® in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Export of Goods on FOB basis 64,200 54,397
Total 64,200 54,397
Earnings Per Share (EPS)  in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Profit for the year 23,842 15,614
Less: Preference Dividend and Tax thereon - 72
Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 23,842 15,542
Weighted average number of Shares* 751,80,524 753,65,784
Face Value Per Share (%) 5.00 5.00
Eamings Per Share (%) - Basic & Diluted 3171 20,62

* During the year Company bought back 14,70,000 shares of fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of ¥ 5/- each through

“Tender Route” process ata price of T 660 per equity share,
Segment Reporting

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing of textiles consisting of yam, fabrics and garments.
Considering the nature of business and financial reporting of the Company, the Company operates in only one business
segment, viz, textiles. The Company operates in Domestic and Export segments geographically. The disclosures relating 1o

secondary geographical segment is as follows:

Segment Revenue by Geographic Location of Customers X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16

Asia 34,577 35,337
Europe 27,938 18,705
USA 1391 341
India 143,416 1,26,180
Others 406 69
Total 2,07,728 180,632

91




40.4

92

(¥ in Lakhs)
Panticulars 2016 - 17 2015-16
Receivables
Asia 920 3,820
Europe 4,737 5,597
USA 187 88
India 82,374 74,088
Fixed Asset 88,218 83,593
India 91,807 89,450
Total 1,80,025 1,73,043
Information about major Customers
Mo single customer contributed more than 10% to the Company’s revenue for both 2016 -17 and 2015-16
 in Lakhs)
Capital Expenditure 2016-17 2015- 16
Qutside India - -
India 14,117 10,016
Total 14,117 10,016
Operating Lease Disclosure

The Company has taken Office space onlease for a period of 9 years with option to renew and with escalation in rent
once in three years with lock-in period of three years. Lease rent forthe year ended 31% March, 2017 amountedto ¥

64 Lakhs (Pr.Yr.T 62 Lakhs).

@ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Minimum lease payments not later than one year 64 64
Later than one year but not later than five years 218 282
More than five years - 18
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42.2

Disclosure of Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans  in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Provident Fund 1272 1,021
Employee State Insurance 493 405
Defined Benefit PlanGratuity
Changes in Present Value of Obligation
PV of obligation as at the beginning of the year 292 240
Curment Service Cost 64 56
Interest Cost 23 1
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligation (15) (23)
PV of obligation as at end of the year 364 292
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
FV of Plan Asset as at beginning of the year 312 245
Expected retum on Plan Assets 30 23
Actuarial gain / (loss) - -
Contributions by the employer 57 44
FV of Plan Asset as at end of the year 399 312
Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet
PV of Obligation as at end of the year 364 292
FV of Plan Asset as at end of the year 399 312
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] 35 20
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 64 56
Interest Cost 23 19
Expected retumn on Plan Assets (30) (23)
Actuarial (gains) / Losses (15) (23)
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 42 29
Composition of Plan Assets
Govemment Securities 163 128
Debentures and bonds 150 117
Fixed deposits 60 47
Others 26 21
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels (per annum) 700 % 700%
Rate of retumn on plan assets (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 30.51 29.46
The details of experience adjustments arising on account of plan assets and liabilities as required by paragraph 120{n)ii)
of Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” are not readily available in the valuation report and hence, are not fumished.
The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotions
and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.

Gratuity

m :I::Ic :d Investment risk: Fund managed by LIC hence risk Oblgation for Next Five Years

Longevity Risk : LIC is taking insurance cover to protect the longevity PI‘“:'“ Rh;;ﬁﬂ

risk. It covers upto the retirement age of the employee. Il year 66

Salary Risk : Since it is funded benefit Company’s liability restricted to Il year 71

the extent of salary revision during the year, IV year 76

V year 82
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Captive consumption of windmill power: The power cost is net value of captively consumed units.
44  Disclosure as per Schedule V of Regulation 34 of the listing regulations - Investments

(¥ in Lakhs)
Name of the Company 2016 -17 | 2015- 16
M/s. Quantum KNITS PVT. UMITED 10 10
M/s. KPR, Sugar Mill Limited 7350 7350
M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited 276 276
M/s. Galaxy Knits Limited 5 5
Total 7641 7641
45  Disclosure as per Schedule V of Regulation 34 of the listing regulations Loans & Advances
(¥ in Lakhs)
famea of the Compaty 31032017 | duingthe |3103.2016| during the
M/s. Jahnvi Motor Private Limited 776 808 808 808
Total 776 808 808 808
Particulars of Raw Materials Consumed - Cotton
- 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Particulars :
Quantity inKgs | ¥ in Lakhs % Quantity in Kgs | Tin Lakhs %
Import 3,26,41,544 34,492 3 12543217 13,000 13
Domestic 6,69,33,520 77,481 69 8,76,18,301 86,608 87
Total 9,95,75,064 111,973 100 10,05,61,518 99,608 100
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The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.

P. Nataraj
Chief Executive Officer &
Managing Director




4 AUDITORS" REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
K.P.R. MILL LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of KPR. Mill Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Parent”) and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its subsidiaries
together referred to as "the Group”), comprising the Consclidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017 the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity, for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements”).

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as "the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities;
the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the
Parent, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. In conducting our
audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or emor.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal
financial control relevant to the Parent’s preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Parent’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consclidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements/
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4 AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

financial information of the subsidiaries referred to below in the

separate financial statements and other financial information of

Other Matters paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS the subsidiaries, referred in the Other Matters paragraph above,
financial statements give the information required by the Actin  we report, to the extent applicable, that:

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2017
and their consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated
staternent of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial
information of 3 subsidiaries, whose financial statements/
financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 82,186 lakhs
as at 31 March, 2017 total revenues of Rs. 75,710 lakhs and
net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 350 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. These financial statements / financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been fumished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

(b) The comparative financial information for the year ended 31
March, 2016 and the transition date opening balance sheet
as at 1 April, 2015 in respect of three subsidiaries included in
this consolidated Ind AS financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Ind AS have been audited by other
auditors and have been relied upon by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
above and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and reports of the other
auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind
AS financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, and the
reports of other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statemnent and Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
slatements.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements caomply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Parent as on 31 March, 2017 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Parent and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified
as on 31 March, 2017 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(A With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial
controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repont
in “Annexure A", which is based on the auditors’ reports of
the parent, subsidiary companies incorporated in India.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Parent’s/
subsidiary company’s incorporated in India internal
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financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose
the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable

losses on long - term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transfering amounts

required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Parent and there were no
amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

iv. The Parent has provided requisite disclosures in the

consolidated Ind AS financial statements as regards

the holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as
defined in the Notification 5.0. 3407(E) dated the 8"
November, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the
period from 8" November, 2016 to 30" December,
2016 of the Group entities as applicable. Based on
audit procedures performed and the representations
provided to us by the management we report thai the
disclosures are in accordance with the relevant books
of accounts maintained by those entities for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements and as produced to us and the
other auditors by the Management of the respective
Group entities.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
{(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

CR. Rajagopal
Place; Coimbatore Parmner
Date: 03 May 2017

(Membership No.23418)
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4 ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNENURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Intemal Financal Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March
31, 2017 we have audited the intemnal financial controls over

financial reporting of K.P.R. Mill Limited (hereinafter referred to as

“the Parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Owver Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderdy
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and ermors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent, its
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systemn over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of intemnal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materal
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditar’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Parent, and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financal reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
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necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Owver
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to emor or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemnal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the intermal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which

are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Imemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)() of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the intemal financial
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to three
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in
India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors
of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No.0080725)

CR. Rajagopal
Partner
(Membership No. 23418)

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 03 May 2017
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4 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at As at As at
ASSETS Note 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(1) Non-Cument Assets L Rinlakhy |
(a) Propenty, Plant & Equipment 5 1,30,621 115,210 1,20139
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 208 3477 236
() Goodwil 70 70 70
(d) Other Intangible Assets 5 46 76 110
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments fa 1,188 165 347
(f Other Non - Current Assets 7 3241 - 10655 4434
Total Non - Current Assets N235378 0 129653 125336
(2) Cument Assets
(a) Inventories 8 53,299 50,570 51,643
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Investments 9 - i 5818
(i) Trade Receivables 10 34073 41,941 27,758
fiii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 4,764 4570 4,038
(iv) Other Financial Assets 12 6,759 3,947 4,585
{c) Other Current Assets 13 4,866 7477 2,443
Total Current Assets 1,03,761 1,08,505 96,285
Total Assets N239.135 238158 221621
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 3,695 3,768 3,768
(b) Other Equity 15 124901 - 106,292 91,659
100 Total Equity N\J285% 110,060 95,427

(2) Non - Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16 21,136 20,587 32,465

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 4,421 4,373 4337

{c) Other Non - Current Liabilities 18 8008 5802 5791
Total Non - Current Liabilities \_ 33.565 30,762 42593

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Bomrowings 19 47378 60,468 41,292
(i) Trade Payables 20 16,602 25,459 28,056
(il Other Financial Liabilities 21 11,724 9,505 12329
(b) Other Cumrent Liabilities 22 681 565 473
{c) Provisions 23 = 72 126
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 24 589 1,267 1325
Total Current Liabilities 76,974 97336 83,601
Total Liabilities 110,539 128,098 1,26,194
Total Equity & Liabilities 239135 238158 22162
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements Ko e f out-veport atiached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
ing Directo Partner
PL Murugappan P. Kandaswamy Mo J
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore

03.05.2017 03.05.2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF PROFIT & LOSS

Year Ended Year Ended
Note 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
(¥ in Lakhs)
I. Revenue from Operations (Gross) 25 281,660 2,60,052
. Other Income 26 2,749 2,389
. Total Revenue (I+1l) \3,“,“! 2,62,441
V. Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 1,63,365 1,45,832
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 5,099 14,820
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work- in-Progress and
Stock in Trade 28 (2,242) (1,362)
Employee Benefits Expense 29 27,830 21,767
Finance Costs 30 6,445 5,763
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 5 14,939 15,205
Other Expenses 31 27,283 32,038
V. Total Expenses \3.&&?1! 2,34,063
V1. Profit Before Tax (lll - V) 37,690 28,378
VIl. Tax Expense
Current Tax
- Pertaining to Current Year 9,119 8,390
- Less: MAT Credit 1,420 1,119
- Pertaining to Prior Years (159) 165
Deferred Tax Expense / (Credit) 1,468 (129)
Net Tax Expenses 9,008 7307
VIIl. Profit for the year (VI- VII) 28,682 21,071
IX. Other Comprehensive Income
Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of Actuarial gain/loss on employee defined benefit plans 15 5
XK. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIll+IX) - 28,697 21,076
Eamings per Equity Share
Basic & Diluted (in ¥) Face value ¥ 5/- each 38 38.17 27.87
See accompanying notes formi rt of the consolidated financial statements
4 né pa consort In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj Chartered Accountznts
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
& Managing Director Partner
PL Murugappan P. Kandaswamy
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore

03.05.2017 03.05.2017

101




102

4 consoupATeD CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 28,697 21,076
Adjustments for:
Income tax Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 9,008 7307
Depreciation and amortisation expense 14,939 15,205
Loss on Sale of Assets (1) 15
Finance Costs 6,445 5729
Interest Income (199) (242)
Net gain on Financial Assets designated at FVTPL (91) (60)
Dividend Income (52) (65)
Rental Income from Operating Leases (13) (14)
Bad Debts Written-off & Provision for Doubtful Trade and Other Receivables 16 8
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 58,749 48,959
Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventories (2,729) 1,073
Trade Receivables 7940 (14,260)
Other Curmrent Assets 2611 (5,034)
Other Non Current Assets 251 (110)
Other Financial Assets (2,854) 762
Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Trade Payables (8.857) (2,597)
Other Cument Liabilities 88 468
Other Non Current Liabilities 2,143 (138)
Cash Generated from Operations 57,342 29,123
Net Income Tax (Paid) (9,638) (8,645)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) L 47,704 20,478
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipments, Including Capital Advances (19,918) (19,986)
Bank Balance not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents - Margin Deposit Accounts 785 (1,457)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 84 244
Purchase of Non-Current Investment
- Others (1,023) 182
Dividend Received 52 65
Interest Received 241 244
Bank Balance not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unpaid Dividend Account 1 1
Rental Income Received from Operating Leases 13 14
(20,693)

Net Cash Flow Used In Investing Activities (B) \{19.?651




y consoLDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

(¥ in Lakhs)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment for buyback of shares (9,702) =
Proceeds from Long-Term Borowings 15,198 8,290
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (12,479) (21,203)
Net Increase in Working Capital Borrowings (13,090) 19,176
Finance Costs Paid (6,368) (6,298)
Dividends Paid (437) (5,380)
Tax on Dividend Paid (82) (1,094)
Net Cash Flow Used In Financing Activities (4] \{15.950] (6,509)
Net Incerase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+0) 979 (6,724)
Add: Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 2931 9,655
Cosing Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note No. 11) b 3,910 2931
Uosing Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises
{a) Cash on Hand 29 149
(b) Balance with Banks:
i) In Current Accounts 1937 2,543
ii) In EEFC Accounts 1944 239
& 3910 2931
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
. In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For % Eobs
K.P. Ramasamy KPD Sigamani P. Nataraj Chartered Accountants
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
& Managing Director Partner
PL Murugappan P. Kandaswamy
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore

03.05.2017 03.05.2017

103




4

CHANGES IN EQUITY

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2017

a. Equity Share Capital
Balance as at April 01, 2015 3,768
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2016 3,768
Less: Buyback of Equity Shares 73
Balance as at March 31, 2017 ~ 3,695
b. Other Equity (T in Lakhs)
Balance as at April 01" 2015 19,096 293 -| 19651 52,619 91,659
Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of
Profit & Loss - - 1,500 1,682 - 3,182
Profit for the year - - - - 21,048 21,048
Other Comprehensive Income . - - - 5 5
Interim Dividend - = . -1 3391 (3.391)
Final Dividend for 2014-15 paid - - - - (1,884) (1,884)
Preference Dividend for 2014-15 paid - - o = (60) (60)
Tax on Dividend - - -1 (1,085) (1,085)
Transfer to General Reserve - ~ - . (1,682) (1,682)
104 Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve . . . - (1,500  (1,500)
Balance as at March 31" 2016 19,096 293 1,500 21333| 64,070 106,292
Profit for the year - - - -| 28,682 28,682
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 15 15
Transfer from Retained Eamings - - 73 2,386 - 2,459
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve - - - - (73) (73)
Premium on Buyback of Equity Shares - - - -l 19,629 (9.629)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - -l (2,386) (2,386)
Final Dividend 2015 - 16 paid - - - - (377) (377)
Tax on Dividend - - - . (82) (82)
Balance as at March 31" 2017 19,056 293 1573| 23,719| B80,220| 124901
For and Board of Directors
on behalf of the Board I tems of aur i
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
KP. -~ KPD P. Nataraj Chartered Accountants
Chairman Managing Director Chief Executive Officer CR. Rajagopal
& Managing Director Partner
PL Murugappan P. Kandaswamy
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Coimbatore Coimbatore
03.05.2017 03.05.2017




1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

KPR Mill Limited is one of the largest vertically integrated
apparel manufacturing Companies in India. The Company
produces Yamn, Knitted Fabric, Readymade Gamments and
Wind power. It has state-of-the-art production facilities in the
State of Tamil Nadu, India. It has four Wholly Owned
Subsidiary Companies as follows:

al Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED is @ Wholly Owned
Subsidiary Company of KPR Mil Limited. The
Company deals in Readymade Garments.

b) KPR Sugar Mill Limited is the Wholly Owned
Subsidiary Company of K.PR. Mill Limited. The Plant
is Located at Bijapur District, Kamataka State. It
produces Sugar along with Green Energy viz, Co-
Gen Power. The Company also has Garment
manufacturing facility at Arasur, Coimbatore and
commenced its operation from November 2013.

¢ Jahnvi Motor Private Limited is the Wholly owned
Subsidiary Company of KPR Mil Limited. The
Company is the authorised dealers of AUDI cars in
Coimbatore Region and Madurai Region.

d  Galaxy Knits Limited is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Company of KP.R. Mill Limited. The Company has not
commenced any major business activity.

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to K.PR. Mill
Limited ('the Company) and its wholly owned Subsidiary
Companies Quantum Knits Private Limited, K.PR. Sugar Mill
Limited, Galaxy Knits Limited and |ahnvi Motor Private
Limited. The Company and its subsidiaries constitute the
Group.

The Company's shares are listed in BSE LTD (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (“Ind AS").

4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Upto the year ended March 31, 2016, the Group prepared its
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India, including accounting
standards read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 (“Previous GAAP”). These are the Group's first Ind AS
financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April,
2015. Refer Note 4 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT:

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
assetin its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices induded within
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly. Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

B) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its Wholly
Owned Subsidiaries.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
on the following basis:

i} The financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the value of like items
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully
eliminating intra - group balances and intra-group
transactions resulting in unrealized profit or loss unless
cost cannot be recovered,

il The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared using uniform accounting policies for the
transactions and other events in similar circumstances
are presented to the extent possible, in the same
manner as the company’s separate financial statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the perod in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

o]

revision and future periods if the revision affects both cumrent
and future periods.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company
are measured using the cumency of the primary economic
envionment in which these entities operate (ie. the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee, the national cumency of India,
which is the functional currency of the Company.

1) INVENTORIES - TEXTILE

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (eg. on FIFQ /
specific identification method) and the net realisable value
after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where ever
considered necessary. Cost includes all charges in bringing
the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other
levies, insurance and receiving charges. Work-in-progress
and finished goods include appropriate proportion of
overheads and, where applicable, excise duty.

2) INVENTORIES - SUGAR

il Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value
whichever is less. The cost for the finished goods is
inclusive of cost of purchase, cost of conversion, excise
duty,cess,if any, and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

il  Stock-in-process, Stores, Spares, Consumables, Packing
and Other Materials are valued at lower of Cost or Net
Realizable Value.

i) Waste and Scrap are valued at Net Realizable Value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (FOR PURPOSES OF CASH
FLOW STATEMENT)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow are reported using indirect method, whereby profit



D)
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/ lloss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated based on the available
information.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than freehold land and properties under construction)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to
customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude sales tax
and value added tax. Sale of Service and revenue from sale of
windmill power are recognised when sewvices are rendered
and related costs are incumed.

OTHER INCOME

Dividend Income is recognised when right to receive the
income is established. Interest income is recognised on time
proportion basis (accrual basis) taking into account the
amount outstanding and rate applicable. Export incentives
are accounted in the year of exports based on eligibility and
expected amount on realisation.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or senvices, or for administrative purposes, are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impaimment losses, Freehold land is not
depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An item of propenty, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the camying

& ACCOUNTING POLICIES

amount ofthe asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue
with the camying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of April 01, 2015 (transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that camying
value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Machinery Spares including spare pans, stand-by and
senvicing equipment are capitalised as property, plant and
equipment if they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment i.e. if the company intends to use these for more
than a period of 12 months. These spare parts capitalized are
depreciated as per Ind AS 16.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each
component/part of the asset separately, if the
component/part has a cost which is significant to the total
cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different
from that of the remaining asset.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are camied at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a staight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the camying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Factory Building -~ 30 Years
Non Factory Building ~  60Years
Plant & Equipments ~ 10Years
Electrical s 14 Years
Computers - 3 Years
Fumnitures —~ 10 Years
Vehicles -~ 8-10 Years
Wind Mill ~ 12 Years
Intangible assets -~ 3 Years
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Capital work-in-progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are cariied at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing cosis capitalised in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
forintended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND
TRANSLATIONS

Transactions in foreign cumency are translated into the
respective functional cumencies using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at the exchange
rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss and reported within the
account caption pertaining to the nature of transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilites denominated in a
foreign cumency and measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of
transaction.

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of
the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trade) are recognised on trade date. While loans, bomowings
and payables are recognised at net of directly attributable
transaction costs,

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial
instruments of the Company are classified in the following
categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising
amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVTOCH), equity instuments at
FVTOC! or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL),
non derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL
and derivative financial instruments (under the category of
financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL
The classification of financial instruments depends on the
objective of the business model for which it is held.
Management determines the classification of its financial
instruments at initial recognition.
al Non-derivative financial assets

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financdial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are presented as cument assets, except for those
maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which
are presented as non-cument assets. Financial assets are
measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently camied at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment loss.

Amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security

deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other

advances and eligible current and non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in

banks and demand deposits with banks which can be

withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty on the
principal.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash

equivalents including cash on hand, in banks and demand

deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand, book overdraft and are considered
part of the Company’s cash management system.

(i) Debtinstruments at FVTOCI

A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:



{a) the objective of the business model is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and

(b) the asset's contractual cash flow represent SPPI

Debt instruments included in FVTOCI category are measured
initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value plus
transaction costs. Fair value movements are recognised in
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and
loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit and loss. Interest eamed is recognised under the
effective interest rate (EIR) model.
(iii) Equity instruments at FVTOCI
All equity instruments are measured at fair value.
Equity instruments held for trading is classified as
FVTPL For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an imevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in OCl. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.
If the Company decides to classify an equity
instrument as FVTOC), then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividend are recognised in
00 which is not subsequently recycled to statement
of profit and loss.
(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any
financial asset which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as amortised cost or as FVTOC, is
classified as FVTPL

In addition the Company may elect to designate the
financial asset, which otherwise meets amonised cost
or FVTOC! criteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency. The Company has not designated any
financial asset as FVTPL

Financial assets included within the FYTPL category are
measured at fair values with all changes in the
statement of profit and loss.

‘A pccountiNG POLICIES

b) Non-derivative financial liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
represented by bomowings, tade and other
payables are initially recognized at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial lizbilities at FVTPL represented by
contingent consideration are measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

o Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments
such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign
cumency assets or liabilities and forecasted cash flows
denominated in foreign cumencies. The counterparty for
these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives are recognized and measured at fair value.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in
staternent of profit and loss.

) GOVERNMENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND EXPORT

INCENTIVES

Govemnment grants and subsidies are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and the grants /
subsidies will be received. Govemment grants whose
primary condition is that the Company should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are presented
by deducting them from the canying value of the assets. The
grant is recognised as income over the life of a depreciable
asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge .

Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based
on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the
same.

Govemment grants in the nature of promoters’ contribution
like investment subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily
expected in respect thereof, are treated as capital reserve.
Government grants in the form of non-monetary assets,
given at a concessional rate, are recorded on the basis of
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their acquisition cost. In case the non-monetary asset is
given free of cost, the grant is recorded at a nominal value,
Other Government grants and subsidies are recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match them with the
costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Short Term

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to

employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual

leave and sick leave in the period the related semvice is

rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits

expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee

benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of

the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the

related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of other

long-term employee benefits are measured at the

present value of the estimated future cash outfiows

expected to be made by the Company in respect of

services provided by employees up to the reporting

date.

(b) Long Term Post Retirement

Post Retirement Benefits comprise of Provident Fund,

Employees State Insurance and Gratuity which are

accounted for as follows:

il Provident Fund & Employee State Insurance
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

ii} Gratuity Fund
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the retumn on plan assets (excluding

net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur.  Remeasurement recognised in  other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained eamnings and is not reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

iii) Leave encashment
There is no scheme for encashment of unavailed
leave.

L) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use orsale.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investmen: of
specific bomowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company identifies primary segments based on the
dominant source, nature of risks and retums and the intemnal
organisation and management structure. The operating
segments are the segments for which separate financial
information is available and for which operating profit / loss
amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive
Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in
line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment
revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment
liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.
Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of
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transactions which are primarily determined based on
market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the
Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on
reasonable basis have been incduded under "unallocated
revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities”.

LEASE

Rental expense from operating leases is generally
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to
increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which
such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per
share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax
(including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense
or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
eamings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a
later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted
for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value (ie. average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented. The
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and
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bonus shares, as appropriate.

P) TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently

payable and deferred tax.

i) CURRENT TAX
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The company’s current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

ii) DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the comesponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
Deferred tax  liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
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the foreseeable future,

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the camying amount
ofits assets and liabilities.

fii) CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX FOR THE YEAR

Current and defered tax are recognised in profit and loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the curent and defemed tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or defemred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Q) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products
are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a
product’s technical feasibility has been established, in which
case such expenditure is capitalised. The amount capitalised
comprises expenditure that can be directly attributed or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating,
producing and making the asset ready for its intended use.
Fixed Assets utilised for research and development are
capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the policies
stated for Fixed Assets,

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
OTHER THAN GOODWILL

Atthe end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the
camying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to

S)

determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units, for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impaimment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
units) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
camying amount of the asset (or cash-generating units) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
canying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impaiment loss is
recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Provision are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, itis
probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at



the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncenainties surounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its camying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a pravision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset ifit is vintually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

T INSURANCE CLAIMS

Insurance claims are accounted on the basis of claims
admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is
reasonable 1o expect ultimate collection.

U) SERVICE TAX INPUT CREDIT

Service tax input credit is accounted in the books in the
period in which the underlying service received is accounted
and when there is reasonable certainty in availing / utilising
the credits.

V) EXCISE DUTY - TEXTILE

The Company has opted to adopt "Exempted Route” under
Central Excise Rules for local sales. Accordingly, Cenvat credit
on inputs is not available to the Company and no excise duty
is payable on sales of manufactured goods.

W) OPERATING CYCLE
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group
and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
curment.
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4. EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IND AS

The Company's financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2017 are the first annual financial statement
prepared by the company in order to comply with Ind AS.The
adoption of Ind AS was carmied out in accordance with Ind AS
101, using 1 April 2015 as the transition date. The transition
was carmied out from previous GAAP (based on the AS
framework) to Ind AS.The effect of adopting Ind As has been
summarized in the reconcilliations provided below.
Ind AS 101 generally requires full retrospective application of
the standards in force at the first reporting date. However, Ind
AS 101 allows certain exemptions in the application of
particular Standards to prior periods in order to assist
companies with the transition process.

Reconciliations

The Accounting policies as stated above in note 3 have been
applied in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March, 2017 the financial statement for the year
ending 31 March,2016 and the preparation of an opening Ind
AS statement of financial position as at 1 April, 2015, In
Preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March ,2016the
Company has adjusted amounts reported in financial
statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAPAn
explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind
AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial
performance is set out in the following tables.
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i. Reconciliations of other equity (%'in Lakhs)
. : Asat31 Asat1l
Particulars March ,2016 | April,2015
Equity as per previous GAAP 1,05,651 89,253
Add : Dividend as per "Ind AS" 459 2266
“Ind AS" 109 Adjustrents 182 122
Net Asset Value of Mutual Funds - 18
Equity as per Ind AS 1,06,252 91,659
ii. Reconciliations of Total Comprehensive Income
(T in Lakhs)
For the Year
Net Profit as per previous GAAP 21,011
On account of interest on Interest free Government Sales Tax Loan (34)
On account of other income 34
Actuarial gain / loss on employee defined benefit plans recognised in
other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) 23
Net Asset Value of Mutual funds
(18)
“Ind AS" 109 Adjustments 60
Total Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) under”ind AS” 21,076

jii. Explanation of material adjustments to statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March ,2016:

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has no material impact on the Statement of Cash Flows except
bank overdraft which has been considered as part of Cash & Cash Equivalent.
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Additions
Disposals

Depreciation Expense

Balance as at March 31, 2017




As at As at As at
FINANCIAL ASSETS 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
INVESTMENTS | Rinlakhe) |
At Cost
Unquoted (all fully paid up)
a) In Equity Instruments

Nil (March 31,2016: Nil and April 1, 2015: 700 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each at a

premium of ¥ 265 per Share in ARS. Metals Private Limited. - - 2
Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil and April 1, 2015: 34,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each of
Cauvery Power Generation Chennai Pvt. Ltd. 2 - 340
Nil (March 31,2016: 3,500 and April 1,2015: 3,500) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each at a
premium of ¥ 126 per Share in Surya Dev Alloys and Power Pvt. Ltd, - 5 5
1,00,84,629 (March 31, 2016: 6,00,000 and April 1, 2015: Nil) Equity Shares of T 10
each of Ind Bharath Powergen Com Limited, 1,008 60 a
1,80,000 (March 31, 2016: 1,00,000 and April 1,2015: Nil) Equity shares of ¥ 100
each of Soranur Water Scheme Pvt Ltd. 180 100 -
b 1,188 165 347
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
(i) Capital Advances 1,559 8712 2538
{ii) Advances other than Capital Advances
Security Deposit 1312 1578 1547
Deposit with Central Excise & Senvice Tax 31 3l 3L
{iii) Others
Prepaid Expenses- Lease hold land 339 334 318
. 324 10,655 4434
INVENTORIES
(At lower of cost & Net realisable value)
Raw Materials 20,815 21,116 24335
Stock-in-process ** 2,058 1916 1,584
Finished Goods 24,145 20,024 19,983
Stockin-trade 1,830 3,851 2862
Stores, Spares, Packing & Others 4,451 3,663 2,879
** Includes Yarn ¥ 1,595 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ 1,388 Lakhs), Fabric ¥ 12 Lakhs (Pr Y. T 12 53,299 50,570 51643
Lakhs), Sugar Nil (Pr. Yr. T Nil) and Garments T 451 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 516 Lakhs).
The Cost of Inventories recognised during the year was ¥ 1,72,464 Lakhs (Pr¥r. T
1,60,652 Lakhs. The Mode of Valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 3A
Average age of inventory is less than 90 days only.
FINANCIAL ASSETS
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
Reliance Mutual Fund - - 5818
b - 5818
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured and Considered good
Trade Receivables - Outstanding for a period more than 6 months
- Unsecured considered good 261 53 58
- Unsecured and considered doubtful 113 132 132
Trade Receivables 33,832 41,908 27723
Less: Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables 133 152 155
(i) The average credit period ranges from 30 days to 90 days. N\ o3 4941 27758

(ii} Since we are having whole turmover insurance policy for our domestic as well
as export business, expected credit loss provision does not required.
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As at As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Ind AS 7

Cash on Hand* 29 149 91
Balance with Banks

i) In Current Accounts 1937 2,543 2,628
ii) In EEFC Accounts 1,944 239 1,132
3,910 2931 3,851

Other Bank Balances
i) In Deposit Accounts # 847 1,632 179
ii) In Earmarked Deposit Accounts - Unpaid Dividend Accounts 7 7 8
854 1,639 187
Total as per Ind AS 7 N 4764 4570 4,038

Of the above, the balances that meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents as
per Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements is T 3,937 Lakhs (Pr¥r. ¥ 2,956 Lakhs)

# Margin Deposits is T 820 Lakhs (Pr. Y. ¥ 1,384 Lakhs)

* The details of Specified Bank Notes {SBN) held and transacted during the period
November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016 are:

(inT)
Particulars SBN | Other Notes| Total
Closing cash on hand as on November 08, 2016 |1,20,25,500 6,27976 11,26,53 476
Add : Permitted Receipts -11,33,79,978 |1,33,79,978
Less : Permitted Payments - 11,04,16,055 | 1,04,16,055
Less : Amount Deposited in Banks 1,20,25,500 28952 11,20,54,452
118 Closing Cash on Hand as on December 30, 2016 - | 35,62,947 | 35,62,947
12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Interest accrued on Deposits 80 122 124
Income Receivable 2,631 1,409 2,180
Technology Upgradation Fund Subsidy Receivable 161 610 478
Investment promotion Subsidy Receivables 3,614 1,624 1,681
Others 273 182 122
b 6,759 3,947 4,585
13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advance to suppliers 3,561 5,857 1,029
Loans and Advances Others - - 106
Loans and Advances to Employees
{Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated) 54 61 &0
Others (Primarily prepaid expenses) 591 S04 471
Balances with Government Authorities
VAT Credit Receivable 660 1,055 777
N 4,866 7477 2443
14 EQUITYSHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorised
9,00,00,000 (March 31,2016: 4,00,00,000 and April 1, 2015:
4,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 5 each with voting rights
(Pr.¥r. Equity Shares of T 10 each with voting rights) 4,500 4,000 4,000
10,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 15,00,000 and April 1, 2015: 15,00,000)
7% Redeemable Cumulative Non Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each 1,000 1,500 1,500




As at As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up

738,95,784 (March 31,2016 3,76,82,892 and April 1, 2015: 3,76,82,892)
Equity Shares of T 5 each fully paid-up with voting rights

(Pr. Yr. Equity Shares of T 10 each with voting rights) 3,695 3,768 3,768

141 Term / Rights to Shares N 36% 37%8 3768

Equity Shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of T 5 per share. The holder of each equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

During the year, the amount of per share interim dividend paid to equity shareholders was ¥ Nil (31st March 2016: T 9 per share)
and pershare final dividend recommended for distribution to equity shareholderis ¥ 0.75 per share (31° March 2016: T 1 per
share).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after settling the dues of preferential and other creditors as priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14.2 Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
a. Equity Shares with voting rights

For the Year Ended 31.03.2017 |  For the Year Ended 31.03.2016
Particulars Number of Shares | (¥ in Lakhs) | Number of Shares | (T in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 753,65,784 3,768 3,76,82,892 3,768
Less : Bll}hﬂk M,?&ml] n3 = - 119
Outstanding at the end of the year 73895784 3,695 3,76,82,892 3,768
b. 7% Redeemable Cumulative Non - Convertible Preference Shares
For the Year Ended 31.03.2017|  For the Year Ended 31.03.2016
Particulars Number of Shares| (7 in Lakhs)| Number of Shares | (% in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year : - 15,00,000 1,500
Changes During the year (Redeemed) - - 15,00,000 1500
Outstanding at the end of the year = = - -
143 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company
Equity Shares
As at 31" March, 2017 As at 31 March,2016
Sacci Number of x Number of %
Shares Shares
Sii. K. P. Ramasamy 1,59,50,000 2158 81,27684 2157
Sri. KPD Sigamani 1,59,50,000 21.58 81,28,634 2157
Si. P. Nataraj 1,59,50,000 7158 81,27733 2157
DSP Blackrock Micro Cap Fund 36,13,057 488 18,99,385 5.04

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of
shares as at the balance sheet date.
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As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

As at

15 OTHER EQUITY
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 293 293 293
Closing Balance 293 293 293
Securities Premium
Opening Balance 19,096 19096 19,096
Closing Balance 19,096 19096 19,096
Amount received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been
classified as security share premium.
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 1,500 - -
Add : Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss - 1,500
Buyback on Capital Redemption 73 - -
Closing Balance 1573 1,500
Capital redemption reserve is created out of profit on redemption of capital.
General Reserve
Opening Balance 21,333 19,651 18,191
Add: Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2,386 1,682 1,460
(losing Balance 23,719 21333 19,651

The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained
eamings for appropriations purposes, As the general reserve is created by transfer
from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive
income,items included in the general reserve will be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss.
Retained Eamings
Opening Balance 64,070 52,619 38,624
Less: Depreciation on transition to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
on tangible fixed assets with nil remaining useful life (Net of deferred tax) o =z 64
Add: Profit for the year 28,697 21053 17331
“Ind AS” 109 Adjustments - - 122
Less:;
Interim Dividend ¥ Nil per share (Pr'¥r T 9 per share) - 3391 1,507
Final Dividend 3 1,884 -
Preference dividend T 60 105
Premium on Buyback of Equity Share 9,629 - -
Tax on Dividend 82 1,085 322
Transfermed to:
General Reserve 2,386 1682 1460
Capital Redemption Reserve 73 1,500 -
Closing Balance 80,220 64,070 52,619
91,659

124901 106292
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16.4
16.5
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As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS

From Banks

Secured

Term Loans 20639 20,113 30,617

From Others

Unsecured

Interest Free Sales Tax Loan - NPV 497 474 348

Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil and Aprill, 2015: 15,00,000)

7% Redeemable Cumulative Non - Convertible Preference

Shares of T100 each,fully paid-up - - 1,500
b 21,136 20587 32,465

Term Loans from banks are secured by pari - passu first charge on

fixed assets and second charge on cument assets of the company.

i) Loan amounting to ¥ 9,387 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. Nil is repayable in 24 quartery installments.

ii) Loan amounting to ¥ 6,775 Lakhs (Pr. Y. ¥ 5,536 Lakhs) is repayable in 23 quarterly instaliments.

iii) Loan amounting to T 355 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 436 Lakhs) is repayable in 18 quarterly installments.

iv) Loan amounting to T 1,874 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ 2,099 Lakhs) is repayable in 17 quarterly installments.

v) Loan amounting to ¥ 3,947 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. Nil) is repayable in 16 quarterly installments.

vi) Loan amounting to T 367 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. T 473 Lakhs) is repayable in 14 quarterly installments. 121

vil) Loan amounting to T 455 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ Nil) is repayable in 9 quarterly installments.

viil) Loan amounting to T 6,866 Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ 16,688 Lakhs) is repayable in 4 quarterly installments.

ix) Loan amounting to T Nil Lakhs (Pr. Y. ¥ 2,099 Lakhs) is fully paid

Interest rate relating to term loans from banks is in the range of 9.05% to 12.50% (Pr. Yr. 9.75% to 12.5%)

The Group has not defaulted in the repayment of principal and interest during the year.

For the cument maturities of long-term borrowings, Refer Note 21 Other Current Liabilities.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 5875 6,004 6,011

Add : Deferred tax liability for cument year - {129) 25

Less : Deferred tax asset for earlier years due to change in method of

depreciation as per New Companies Act, 2013 2 2 32

Deferred Tax Assets

i} Unabsorbed Depreciation Carry Forward 1781 - -

ii) Disallowances under Section 40(al(i), 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (313) - -

Closing Balance 7343 5875 6,004

Opening Balance 5875 6,004 6,012

Net Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit) 1468 (129) 8

Less : MAT Credit entitlement 2922 1502 1,667
N 4,421 4373 4,337




As at As at As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

18 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade Payable 7516 5329 5,467
Payables on purchase of Fixed Assets 117 54 -
Others

Defemred Revenue arising from Government Grants 375 419 324
CORRENT LIABILITIES 3 8,008 5802 5791
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

19 BORROWINGS
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks (Secured)

i) Loans for Working Capital 17,067 26,650 30,714
i) Packing Credit 28,278 24599  BA426
iii) Others

Acceptances Under Buyers Credit = 6,747 :
Loans Repayble on demand 2,033 2472 2152

- 47,378 60,468 41,292

19.1 The above loans are secured by first charge on inventories and book debts
and second charge on fixed assets to lending banks on pari - passu basis.

19.2 The Company has not defaulted in its repayments of the loans and
interest during the year.

122

20 TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises
Other than Acceptances 16,602 25,459 28056

< 16,602 25459 28,056

The average credit period on purchase of goods and services are within 60 days.
Trade payable are non- interest bearing.

21 OTHERFINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current Maturities of
i) Long Term Loans (Refer Note 16.1 to 16.5) 9,388 7218 9746
ii} Interest Free Sales Tax Loan - - 102
Others - Unclaimed Dividend 7 7 8
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 88 11 580
Statutory payables 2210 2,250 1,806
Other Liabilities 31 19 87

N 11,724 9,505 12329

22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance from Customers 681 565 473
681 565 473
23 PROVISIONS N
Provision - Others
Provision for Proposed Preference Dividend - 60 105
Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividends - 12 21

N = 7 12
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CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Net)
Provision for Tax*

* Net of Advance Tax paid ¥ 8,530 Lakhs (Pr. W.T 7123 Lakhs).

INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN PROFIT & LOSS

Current Tax
Current Income Tax charge

Adjustment in respect of Current Income Tax of Prior Years
MAT Credit Entitlement
Deferred Tax

In respect of Current Year

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting
profit as follows:

Profit before Tax

Income Tax Expense

Effect of expenses that is exempt from taxation
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determing taxable profit

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the Current Tax of
Prior Years

MAT Credit Entitlement

Deferred Tax for Current Year
Total Income Tax Recognised

As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

589 1,267

As a1

1325

N 089 1267

1325

For the Year
Ended
31.03.2017

For the Year
Ended
31.03.2016

& in Lakhs)

9119 8,390
(159) 165
(1,420) (1,119)
7540 1436
1,468 (129)
b 9,008 7307
37,690 28,378
12,179 9486
(4,576) (2,784)
1516 1,688
9119 8,390
(159) 165
(1,420) (1,119)
1,468 (129)

2008

1307
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For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

{ in Lakhs)

25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products (Refer Note 25.1) 2,68103 2,47315
Sale of Services (Refer Note 25.2) 2,551 3,668
Other Operating Revenues (Refer Note 25.3) 11,006 9,069
Revenue from Operations (Gross) N 28L660 260052
25.1 Sale of Products
Garment 69,354 59,262
Yam 1,20,592 1,05,932
Fabric 41,546 41,610
Sugar 16,508 16,382
Molasses 1,589 1,818
Co-Gen Power 956 3,686
Automobile 10,236 11,441
Cotton Waste 7322 7184

2,68,103 247,315

25.2 Sale of Services

124 Processing & Fabrication Income 2,237 3,423
Automobile Service Income 314 245
2,551 3,668
253 Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentives 9,068 6,704
Others (Primarily Scrap) 1,938 2,365
11,006 9,069
26 OTHER INCOME
Interest from
Bank Deposits 125 116
Others 74 126
Dividend
From Current Investments 52 65
Investment Promotion Subsidy 1,990 1774
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 1 -
Miscellaneous Income 416 248
Met gain on Financial Assets designated at FVTPL 91 60

749 2,389
N 2,
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Ended
31.03.2017

For the Year For the Year

Ended
31.03.2016

 in Lakhs)
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
a) Opening Stock
Cotton 18,273 21,798
Dyes & Chemicals 224 317
Yarn, Fabric & Garments 2619 2,220
21,116 24,335
b) Add: Purchases and Production Expenses
Cotton 111,131 96,083
Dyes & Chemicals 2424 2,397
Yam, Fabric, Polyster & Garments 25,286 18117
Production Expenses 5,625 3,197
Trims, Packing & Others (Consumption) 6,251 5,691
Sugar Cane & Coal 11,381 16,234
162,098 141,719
¢) Less : Closing Stock
Cotton 17,431 18,273
Dyes & Chemicals 147 224
Yamn, Fabric & Garments 3,237 2,619
20,815 21,116
Excise duty on sale of goods 966 894
N 163,365 145832
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK - IN - PROGRESS AND
STOCK IN TRADE
a) Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 20,024 19,983
Work-in-Progress 1516 1,584
Stock-in-Trade 3,851 2,862
25,791 24,429
b) Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 24,145 20,024
Work-in-Progress 2,058 1916
Stock-in-Trade 1830 3,851
28,033 25,791
(1,362)

Net (Increase) . (2,242)
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29

30

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries & Wages

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expense on

Term Loans

Working Capital Loans

Others

Interest on Interest Free Sales Tax Loan

Average Interest Cost ( Refer Note 16.3)

OTHER EXPENSES
Power & Fuel
Consumption of Stores & Packing materials
Repairs and Maintenance
Building
Machinery
Others
Insurance Charges
Administration Expenses
Professional Fees
Rent (Refer Note 41)
Duties, Rates & Taxes
Payment to Auditor (Refer Note 33)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Travelling Expenses

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013
Donations
Bad Debts Written Off
General Expenses

Selling Expenses
Freight & Forwarding
Sales Commission

Other Selling Expenses

For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

 in Lakhs)
23,775 18,424
2,045 1,699
2,010 1644
27,830 21,767
2,066 3,204
3,602 2017
732 508
45 34
6,445 5763
9895 12,861
3.545 3,180
530 543
4942 71689
493 362
240 229
275 164
276 246
176 271
14 15
- 15
700 555
465 369
328 318
16 8
482 336
2431 2174
1,296 1,495
1,179 1,208
27,283 32,038




32 (Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
I. Contingent Liabilities
(a) Disputed Liabilities in Appeal

(i) Demand Notice from Indian Bank towards Prepayment Charges. The same has
been contested in writ filed before the High Count of Judicature at Madras which has
restrained Indian Bank from applying proceeds of TUF subsidy towards its demand for
prepayment charges. The case is pending disposal.

(il Income Tax demands

(i) Central Excise demands

(i) Service Tax demands

(iv) Sales Tax demands

(b) Bank Guarantees in favour of parties

(i) Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation [TANGEDCO]
(i) Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board

(il Suryadev Alloys and Power Private Limited

(W) ARS.Energy Private Limited

{(v) Bank Note Paper Mill India Private Limited

(vi) Ind Bharath Power Gencom Limited

(viil New Tirupur Area Water Development Corporation Limited

{c) Letter of Credit Facility in favour of Suppliers
Foreign Letter of Credit
(d) Discounted sales invoices

Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of
judgement / decisions pending at various forums / authorities.

Il. Commitments

Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for

As at

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

82
2,077
6
28

L Bk

32

® .

7595
2,563

As at

6,088

28
11

374
67

891
28

6,246
3,258
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33 Payment to Auditors

(% in Lakhs)

_ Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Audit Fees 13 13
Tax Audit and Tax Matters - 1
Other Services - -
Expenses (incl. Service Tax) 1 1
Total 14 15

34 Financial Instruments
Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the

return to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borowings as detailed in notes 16, 19 and 21 off set by cash and

bank balances) and total equity of the Group.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Gearing Ratio
The Gearing Ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows (Tin Lakhs)
ST As at March 31, [ As at March 31, | As at April 01,
2017 - 2016 12015
Debt * 77,902 88,273 83,605
Less : Cash and Bank Balances 4,764 4570 4,038
Net Debt 73,138 83,703 79,567
Total Equity 1,28,5%6 1,10,060 95,427
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 56.87% 76.05% 83.38%

* Debt is defined as long-term bormowings, short-term borrowings and current maturities of long term bomowings as
described in notes 16,19 and 21.

Financial Risk Management objectives

The Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and International
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risk relating to the operation of the Group through intemnal risk reports
which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including curmency risk, interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.The use of financial derivatives is governed by the group’s policies approved by the board
of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial
derivatives and non-derivatives financial instruments and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and
exposure limits is reviewed by the interal auditors on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade financial
instrument, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market Risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The group enters
into plain vennila forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk including:



Details of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposures:
(i) Outstanding forward exchange contracts for hedging purposes as on 31st March, 2017

Currency Coss Cumency | AT | Buy/sel
- -
e a 40482 e
EURD " o) | s
w -

Note: Figures in bracket relates to the previous year
(ii) The year - end unhedged foreign currency exposures are given below:

As at 31" March, 2017 As at 31" March, 2016
Receivables / (Payables) Receivables / (Payables)
Tin Lakhs FCin Lakhs T in Lakhs FCin Lakhs

6890 $106 591 $9
629 €9 33 €0
974 £12 - :
- - (5,069) ($76)
- - (1,009) CHF (15)
- - (117) JPY (198)
- - (2,456) (€33)

i) Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on imports and exports.
ii.) The group covering its cumency billing under forward cover and hence se analysis is not required.

Foreign cumrency Risk Management
The group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign cumencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed through plain vennila forward foreign exchange contracts.

Equity Risk
There is no material equity risk relating to the group's equity investments which are detailed in note 6 “Investments”. The group's
equity investments majorly comprises of strategic investments rather than trading purposes.

Interest Risk
The group bormows funds from banks only at fixed rates, the rates are reviewed every year by the bank. There is no material
interest risk relating to the group’s financial liabilities

Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to the group. The

group’s domestic & export receivables are covered under credit insurance.

Liquidity Risk Management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the group’s short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

All current financial liabilities are repayable within one year. The contractual maturities of non current liabilities are disclosed in
note no. 16.
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35 Related Party Disclosures

Disclosures under “Ind AS" 24 — Related Pany Disclosure, as identified and disclosed by the management and relied upon

by the Auditors:
351 Name of related parties and nature of relationships

Key Management Personnel 5ri, K.P. Ramasamy
5ri. KPD Sigamani
Sri. P. Nataraj
Sri. CR. Anandakrishnan
Sri. EK Sakthivel
Relatives of Key Management Personnel Smt D.Geetha (Daughter of Sii. KPD Sigamani)
Enterprises owned by key management M/s K.P.R. Developers Limited
personnel/Directors or their relatives M/s K P R Cements Private Limited
M/s K P R Holdings Private Limited
M/s K P R Agro Farms Private Limited
M/s K P R Charities
35.2 Transactions during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date
(% in Lakhs)
owned by key Key Relatives to
Lease Rent - 1 - 1
- (1) - 1)
Remuneration / Salary - 2733 6 2,739
- (2,042) (22) (2,064)
Donation 300 - - 300
(300) - - (300)
Amount Payable - 1,652 - 1,652
- (1,217) - (1,217)
(Previous year figures are shown in brackets)
35.3 Details of transactions with related parties
a. Lease Rent Paid (Zin Lakhs)
Name 2016-17 2015-16
Sri K.P. Ramasamy 0.19 0.19
Sri KPD Sigamani 0.19 0.19
Sii P. Nataraj 0.18 0.18
Total 0.56 0.56
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b. Remuneration / Salary (T in Lakhs)
Sri. KP. Ramasamy 897 672
Sri. KPD Sigamani 897 672
Sii. P. Nataraj 897 672
Sri. CR Anandakrishnan 24 24
Sri. EX Sakthivel 18 18
Smt D. Geetha 6 6
Total 2739 2,064
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 _
M/s KPR Charities 300 300
Total 300 300
d. Amount Payable (¥ in Lakhs)
Name 2016-17 2015-16
Sri KP. Ramasamy 546 405
Sri KPD Sigamani 538 405
Sri P. Nataraj 568 407
Total 1,652 1,217
Expenditure in Foreign Currency and CIF Value of Imports (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
(a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Travel, sales commission etc., 275 509
Interest 205 135
Professional Fees 47 11
Salary 32 -
Others 70 -
(b) Value of Imports on CIF basis
Raw Material 37,745 15,383
Stores and Spare parts 534 619
Machinery 6,811 7673
Total 45,719 24,330
Eamings in Foreign Exchange (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Export of Goods on FOB basis 1,01,395 90,654
Total 1,01,395 90,654
- Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Profit for the year 28,697 21,076
Less: Preference Dividend and Tax thereon - 72
Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 28,697 21,004
Weighted average number of Shares* 751,80,524 753,65,784
Face Value Per Share () 5 5
Eamings Per Share - Basic & Diluted (%) 38.17 27.87
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* During the year Company bought back 14,70,000 shares of fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of ¥ 5/- each through
“Tender Route” process at a price of ¥ 660 per equity share.
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Goodwill on Consolidation @ In Lakhs)
Particulars 2016- 17 2015-16
Opening Balance 70 70
Less: Impairment - -
Closing Balance 70 70

Segment Reporting

Goodwill is arising on consolidation of subsidiary Companies. All the subsidiary Companies eaming good profits and
hence impairment is not required.

The Group has classified the operations primarily into three segments viz, Textile, Sugar and Others based on nature of
products, risk, returns and the internal business reporting system.

The Group is operating in three business segments, viz, Textile, Sugar and Others as follows

{Z In Lakhs)
e S = Eliminations Total
241,051 19,053 10,550 - 2,70,654
Revenue (2,17,411) (21,886) (11,686) -l (250983)
Inter-segment revenue ~ (527) _ (527) )
Total 241,051 19,053 10,550 - 270,654
(2,17.411) (22.613) (11,686) (527) (2,50,983)
34,481 452 8 - 34941
Segment resukt (30,704) (641) (467) . (31,812)
Unallocable expenses (net) = }
729

Operating income ‘;;bg:;}
Other income (net) {2%2?;:1
37,690
Profit before taxes (28,378)
9,008

-
o expense (7307)
28,682
Profit for the year (21,071)

Note: Figures in bracket relate to the previous year
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(% in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March, 2017
Particulars Business Segments Total
Textile Sugar Others
Sagirisnt Assits 1,98,830 35,397 4,752 2,38979
(1,93,638) (38,734) {5,631) (2,38,003)
2,986
Unallocable Assets v
i (1,572)
2,41,965
1ot At (2,39,575)
Liabilit 93,657 16,645 3,294 1,13,596
g e (73326) (20,394) 3,641) (97361)
Unallocable Liabilities a
_ 113,596
Tl Liskiies (97,361)
Other information
30,424 10 84 30,518
Capital expendiure (10,016) (145) (688) (10,849)
12,087 2,729 123 14,939
Depreciation and amortization (12,387) (2,727) (91) {15,205)
Note: Figures in bracket relate to the previous year
(Z in Lakhs) 133
Segment Revenue by Geographic Location of Customers| 201617 |  2015-16
Asia 36,095 36,542
Europe 50,607 43,608
USA 2,717 2,011
Others 12,089 8,549
India 1,66,595 1,56,605
Total 2,68,103 247,315
(2 in Lakhs)
‘Segment Assets by Geographic Location of Assets 2016-17 2015-16
Receivables
Asia 1,404 4,170
Europe 10,874 13,108
USA 253 367
Others 4573 2,618
India 91,156 99,132
1,08,260 1,19,395
Fixed Asset
India 130,875 118,763
Total 239,135 238158
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Information about major Customers
No single customer contributed more than 10% to the Company's revenue for both 2016-17 and 2015-16

(% in Lakhs)
(Capital Expenditure '2016-17 2015-16
Outside India % =
India 30,518 10,849
Total 30,518 10,849
Operating Lease Disclosure

The Group has taken Office space on lease for a period of 9 years with option to renew and with escalation in rent once
in three years with lock-in period of three years. Lease rent for the year ended 31st March, 2017 amounted to ¥ 236

Lakhs (Pr. Yr. ¥ 168 Lakhs).

(7 in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Minimum lease payments not later than one year 234 228
Later than one year but not later than five years 377 611
More than five years - 18
Disclosure of Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Provident Fund 1923 1581
Employee State Insurance 725 591
Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity (% In Lakhs)
Changes in Present Value of Obligation
PV of obligation as the beginning of the year 404 323
Current Service Cost 86 87
Interest Cost 29 24
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligation (38) (30)
PV of obligation as at end of the year 481 404
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
FV of Plan Asset as at beginning of the year 381 296
Expected retumn on Plan Assets 35 28
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Contributions by the employer 57 57
FV of Plan Asset as at end of the year 473 381
Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet
PV of Obligation as at end of the year 481 404
FV of Plan Asset as at end of the year 473 381
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (8) (23)
Expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 86 87
Interest Cost 29 24
Expected retum on Plan Assets (35) (28)
Actuarial (gains) / Losses (38) (30)
Expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 42 53
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Composition of Plan Assets
Govemnment securities
Debentures and bonds

Others

Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate (per annum)

Rate of increase in compensation levels (per annum)

Rate of retun on plan assets (per annum)

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)

194 156

177 143

71 57

31 25

8.00% 8.00%

750% 7125%

8.00% 8.00%

27.80 - 30.51 | 29.46 - 31.39

The details of experience adjustments arising on account of plan assets and liabilities as required by paragraph 120(n)i)
of AS 15 (Revised) on "Employee Benefits” are not readily available in the valuation report and hence, are not fumished.

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,

promotions and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.

Gratuity

Interest risk and Investment risk: Fund managed by LIC hence risk
does not arise,

Longevity Risk : LIC is taking insurance cover to protect the longevity
risk. It covers upto the retirement age of the employee.

Salary Risk : Since it is funded benefit Company’s liability restricted to
the extent of salary revision during the year.

Sensitivity Analysis:
Obligation for Next Five Years
Particulars (T in Lakhs)
| year 61
Il year 66
il year 71
IV year 76
V year 82

Captive consumption of windmill power: The power cost is net value of captively consumed units.

Statement pursuant to general exemption received under section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to

Subsidiary Companies.

2016-17 (2 in Lakhs)
Share Capital 10 583 5 193
Reserves & Sumplus 2,067 21,018 (1) 489
Total Assets 2,086 77,430 4 4749
Total Liabilities 9 55,829 - 4,067
Investments (Excluding investment

in subsidiaries) - - n -
Tumover 408 63,844 - 11,507
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 87 6,588 - 10
Provision for Tax 45 1781 - 7
Profit After Tax 42 4,807 - 17
Proposed Dividend . - B R
% of Share Holding 100 100 100 100




2015-16 (T in Lakhs)
Share Capital 10 583 5 193
Reserves & Surplus 2,025 16,211 (1) 472
Total Assets 3,076 74,861 4 5,621
Total Liabilities 1,041 58,067 - 4956
Investments (Excluding investment

in subsidiaries) . . ; 2
Turmnover 11,263 66,115 - 13,160
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 1976 5,200 - 32
Provision for Tax 705 - - 20
Profit After Tax 1,271 5,200 - 12
Proposed Dividend - - f =
% of Share Holding 100 100 100 100

Consolidated Financial Statement to Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013

45 Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of

(% in Lakhs)
As % of As % of
consolidated Amount Consolidated Amount
net assets Profit or Loss

K.PRMill Limited 87 1,11,806 a3 23,857
Subsidiaries - Indian

1. M/s Quantum KNITS PVT. LIMITED 2 2,067 - 42

2. W/s KPR Sugar Mill Limited 1 14,235 17 4,807

3. M/s Jahnvi Motor Private Limited - 489 - 17

4. M/s Galaxy Knits Limited - (i - i

Less : Dividend - - = (26)

100 1,28,596 100 28,697

46 The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified

classification.

wherever necessary to conform to cument year's

P. Nataraj
Chief Executive Officer &
Managing Director
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2,58,979
2,40,206

1,67040
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FY 2014

Turnover ( T In Lakhs)

2,21554

211,798

2,01,895
1,95,078 E |

Investments in Fixed Assets ( ¥ In Lakhs)

59,074

EBIDTA ( ¥ In Lakhs)

1,28,596

1,10,060

95,427

70,626 81,454

A

Net Worth ( ¥ In Lakhs)

Distribution of Earnings

@@ Raw Material 59.84%
D Tax 2.27%
@® Finance Charges 3.17%
Power 3.48%
C— Depreciation 5.25%
@ Other Exp 6.11%
@® Employee Cost 9.79%
™ PAT 10.09%



Corporate Office :

K-PR. MILL LIMITED

1% Floor, Srivari Shrimat, 1045, Avinashi Road,
Coimbatore - 641 018.
Phone : +91 422 220 7777 | Fax: +91 422 220 7778
CIN : L17111TZ2003PLC010518
Email : corporate@kprmill.com

www.kprmilllimited.com
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